
 6/17/2019: ADDED REGULAR BUSINESS ITEM 3.E. AND CONSENT
AGENDA ITEM 5.A. 6/18/2019: ADDED ADDENDUM 1A, 1B & 1C

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Thursday, June 20, 2019 - 2:00 PM
1000 Main Street Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business
hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org.
The District Office hours are Monday - Thursday, and every other Friday from 9:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m.
Please call 805-927-6223 if you need any assistance. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents
shall be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any
questions regarding the agenda.
 

1. OPENING

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Establishment of Quorum

D. Report from Closed Session

E. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time: 30 minutes. At President's discretion additional
comments may be heard at the end of meeting.)

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the
Board but not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act
on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the
entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk.

3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF SELECTION OF CANDIDATES FOR
ELECTION TO THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP)
PRIORITIZATIONS AND REVIEW OF FINANCE AND RESOURCES &
INFRASTRUCTURE JOINT SPECIAL MEETING OUTCOMES

1

http://


C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT TO REFLECT
THE TYLER SOFTWARE ACQUISITIONS IN FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019, APPROVE
CHANGE ORDER NOS. 2 & 3 AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 27-2019

D. DISCUSSION REGARDING FINANCE, POLICY & RESOURCES &
INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE BYLAWS

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 28-2019
APPROVING AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH JOHN F. WEIGOLD, IV FOR
GENERAL MANAGER SERVICES AND AMENDING THE CCSD SALARY
SCHEDULE

4. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 24-
2019 APPROVING THE CCSD PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR
2019/2020 AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 25-2019 ESTABLISHING THE FISCAL
YEAR 2019/2020 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to discuss a consent
item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be made. Such items are pulled for
separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a whole is acted upon.

A. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH
PAAVO OGREN FOR UTILITIES MANAGER SERVICES 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal
agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken except to
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by majority vote.

A. Receive and File the Independent Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year 2017/18

B. Discussion Regarding Reduced Water Rates for Low Income Ratepayers

C. Public Hearing to Discuss and Consider Adoption of Resolution Approving the Final CCSD
Budget for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 on August 15, 2019

D. Town Hall Meeting on July 31, 2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

7. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Estimated time: 60 Minutes)

A. Public Comment

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b).
Title: General Manager

C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957(b)
Title: Interim General Manager

D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6
Agency Designated Representatives: David Pierson and Timothy Carmel
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager

2



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 3.A. 
       
FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk 
  Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019  Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF SELECTION OF CANDIDATES  
        FOR ELECTION TO THE SPECIAL  
        DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT   
        AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the Official Election Ballot, select up to 
three (3) candidates for election to the Board of Directors for the Special District Management 
Risk Authority (SDRMA), and authorize the Board President to mark and sign the ballot.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There is no fiscal impact associated with this agenda item. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
The CCSD is a member of SDRMA, and participates in SDRMA’s Property/Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation Programs. 
 
In January 2019, SDRMA requested nominations for three (3) seats on its Board of Directors. 
SDRMA’s Election Committee reviewed the nomination documents and confirmed that five (5) 
candidates met the qualification requirements; those names are included on the enclosed 
Official Election Ballot.  
 
It is requested that the Board of Directors select up to three (3) candidates to elect to the 
Board of Directors for SDRMA. The Statement of Qualifications for the five (5) candidates are 
attached for review. The candidates are: Bob Swan, Jesse D. Claypool, Patrick K. O’Rourke, 
Sandy Siefert-Raffelson, and James M. Hamlin. The four-year terms for newly elected SDRMA 
Directors will begin on January 1, 2020 and terminate on December 31, 2023. Election 
instructions are as follows: 
 

1. The enclosed Official Election Ballot must be used to ensure the integrity of the balloting 
process. 

2. After selecting up to three (3) candidates, the Board of Directors must approve the 
enclosed Official Election Ballot at a public meeting. Ballots containing more than three 
(3) candidate selections will be considered invalid and not counted.  

3. The signed Official Election Ballot MUST be sealed and received by mail or hand 
delivery at SDRMA’s office on or before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, August 21, 2019.   

 
 
 

3



 
 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: SDRMA’s Board of Directors Election Ballot Instructions 
  Official 2019 Election Ballot 
  SDRMA’s Board of Directors Candidates’ Statements of Qualifications 
  5/9/2019 P, O’Rourke’s Email 
  5/30/2019 P, O’Rourke’s Email 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___PIERSON___FARMER___RICE___STEIDEL___HOWELL___ 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



From: Monique Madrid
To: Haley Dodson
Subject: FW: Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 2019 Board Election
Date: Monday, June 3, 2019 1:25:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

This is the other we have received however it is the same candidate.  We should still provide both
items.
 
 

 

From: Monique Madrid 
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2019 8:10 AM
To: Paavo Ogren <pogren@cambriacsd.org>
Cc: Haley Dodson <hdodson@cambriacsd.org>
Subject: FW: Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 2019 Board Election
 
Good Morning Honorable Directors,
 
Please see the message below related to an upcoming SDRMA board election.
 
Monique
 

 
From: Patrick O'Rourke <pkorourke@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2019 6:19 PM
To: Patrick O'Rourke <pkorourke@gmail.com>
Subject: Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 2019 Board Election
 
To: SDRMA Member Organization

18

mailto:mmadrid@cambriacsd.org
mailto:hdodson@cambriacsd.org
mailto:pkorourke@gmail.com
mailto:pkorourke@gmail.com

Monique Madrid, CMC
Assistant General Manager/Administrative Department Manager
‘Cambria Community Services District
P (805)927-6223
f (805)527-5584
1316 Tamsep Strect, Suite 201 Cambria, CA 93428
P.0. Box 65 Cambria, CA 93428
w: W cambriacsd.org e: mmadrid@cambriacsd.org





Monique Madrid, CMC

Administrative Department Manager

Cambria Community Services District

p: (805)927-6223

f (805) 927-5584

2 1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201 Cambria, CA 93428
P.0. Box 65 Cambria, CA 93428

w: www.cambriacsd.org e: mmadrid@cambriacsd.org






C/o: General Manager / Board President
 
You should be receiving a letter from SDRMA in the mail, very soon, regarding the upcoming 2019
election for SDRMA Board of Directors.  There are 5 candidates to be elected to 3 open board
positions.  SDRMA member organization ballots must be received by SDRMA no later than 4:30 p.m.
on August 21st, 2019.
 
I, Patrick O'Rourke, have submitted my candidacy and would appreciate your organization's vote. 
SDRMA should be providing my "Statement of Qualifications," along with those of the other
candidates.  
 
I wanted to also provide you with my direct contact information (below) to answer any questions
you may have concerning my candidacy.  I would also like to try to make myself available to speak to
your board members (via telephone or video teleconference) at your upcoming board meeting when
this election item is on your public agenda, if your board officers/membership should so desire.
Having such conversation would be an excellent way for me to learn what the needs and concerns of
SDRMA members may be, and how I can best serve you as an SDRMA Board Member.  
 
If you would like to schedule a time that I could talk with your board members, please contact me via
email or telephone with the details (day/time) of your upcoming public board meeting when you will
be making a decision on this 2019 SDRMA Board Election, along with the approximate agenda time
for this Board Election item, and any conferencing/connection details. I will look forward to the
opportunity to talk/visit with your members at your upcoming meeting, and take note of any
concerns and questions that you may have so that I can best serve and represent the entire
membership of SDRMA on the Special District Risk Management Authority's Board of
Directors.  Thank you so much for anticipated support!
 
Very Best Regards,
 
Patrick  
 
Patrick K. O'Rourke, M.P.A./C.F.R.M.
2019 Immediate Past Chair; 2018 Board Chair; Member of Executive Committee; Member of Loan
Committee:
Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (RREDC is a 19-member Joint Powers
Authority)
City Council Member: City of Ferndale "The Victorian Village" 
Master of Public Affairs-Nonprofit Management
Certification in Fund Raising Management
P.O. Box 571
Ferndale, CA  95536-0571 U.S.A.
1-707-726-6700
pkorourke@gmail.com

19

mailto:pkorourke@gmail.com


From: Monique Madrid
To: Haley Dodson
Subject: FW: Follow-up on Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 2019 Board Election
Date: Monday, June 3, 2019 1:23:08 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Please include as an attachment to the Election item.
I think we have one other. 
 

 
From: Patrick O'Rourke <pkorourke@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2019 8:04 PM
To: Patrick O'Rourke <pkorourke@gmail.com>
Subject: Follow-up on Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 2019 Board Election
 
May 30, 2019
To: SDRMA Member Organization
C/o: General Manager/Board President
 
Dear General Manager/Board President:
 
About two weeks ago, SDRMA mailed information to all special district member organizations regarding
SDRMA's 2019 Board Election.  Hopefully your district has received your ballot and instructions for
completing and returning your choices for SDRMA board directors to SDRMA by/or before the deadline
for ballot receipt at SDRMA offices at 4:30 p.m. on August 21st, 2019.
 
I, Patrick O'Rourke, am one of 5 candidate choices for the 3 open board positions.  My candidate
"Statement of Qualifications," were included in the election materials, along with those of the other
candidates.  
 
If it works into one of your upcoming board meeting agendas, I would like to try to make myself available
to speak to your board members (via telephone or video teleconference), if your board
officers/membership should so desire. Having such conversation would be an excellent way for me to
learn more about what the needs and concerns of SDRMA members may be, and how I can best serve
your organization as an SDRMA Board Member.  
 
If you would like to schedule a time that I could talk with your board, please contact me via email or
telephone with the details (day/time) of your upcoming public board meeting(s) when you might be
available for a short discussion.  I'd be happy to try to schedule a time at any of your meetings prior to
your organization making your board member candidate selections for this 2019 SDRMA Board Election.
 
I look forward to the opportunity to talk/visit with your members and to take note of any concerns and
questions so that I can best serve and represent the entire membership of SDRMA on the Special District
Risk Management Authority's Board of Directors.  Thank you so much for your anticipated support!

20

mailto:mmadrid@cambriacsd.org
mailto:hdodson@cambriacsd.org

Monique Madrid, CMC

Administrative Department Manager

Cambria Community Services District

p: (805)927-6223

f (805) 927-5584

2 1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201 Cambria, CA 93428
P.0. Box 65 Cambria, CA 93428

w: www.cambriacsd.org e: mmadrid@cambriacsd.org






 
Very Best Regards,
 
Patrick  
 
Patrick K. O'Rourke, M.P.A./C.F.R.M.
2019 Immediate Past Chair; 2018 Board Chair; Member of Executive Committee; Member of Loan
Committee:
Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (RREDC is a 19-member Joint Powers Authority)
City Council Member: City of Ferndale "The Victorian Village" 
Master of Public Affairs-Nonprofit Management
Certification in Fund Raising Management
P.O. Box 571
Ferndale, CA  95536-0571 U.S.A.
1-707-726-6700
pkorourke@gmail.com
 

21

mailto:pkorourke@gmail.com


 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO. 3.B. 
       
FROM: Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 
  Annette Young, Clerical Assistant 
VIA:   Paavo Ogren, Interim General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019  Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT   
        PROJECT (CIP) PRIORITIZATIONS  
        AND REVIEW OF FINANCE AND  
        RESOURCES & INFRASTRUCTURE  
        JOINT SPECIAL MEETING   
        OUTCOMES 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the Board of Directors discuss and consider the Capital Improvement Project 
(CIP) prioritizations and review the Finance and Resources & Infrastructure Committees’ joint 
special meeting outcome. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
The Resources & Infrastructure Committee and Finance Committee held a joint special meeting on May 
14, 2019 to discuss the Resources & Infrastructure Committee CIP prioritization for the Water, SWF and 
Wastewater systems. The agenda packet can be viewed here: https://www.cambriacsd.org/2019-05-14-
resources-infrastructure-standing-committee-special-meeting 
 
The following is a summary of outcomes of the joint committee discussion: The Resources & 
Infrastructure Committee recommended that the Finance Committee accept the water CIP priority list as 
proposed, with the provision that priorities can change in the event of an emergency. All of the priority 
1’s on the Water Fund CIP list add up to $440,000, excluding the water meter replacements. The overall 
water meter replacement program implementation needs to be reviewed by the Resources & 
Infrastructure Committee first to determine how the project will be phased. Any funds from the $440,000 
not used in the first year will be rolled over for use in the next year. Of the priority 1 projects, the high-
pressure water main replacement at the Santa Rosa Creek pedestrian bridge and the SCADA system 
upgrades should be given top consideration.   
 
The Resources & Infrastructure Committee recommended the SWF CIP priorities as indicated, with the 
provision that priorities can be adjusted in the event of an emergency. Both Committees agreed to remove 
the line item for consulting assistance with the Army Corps of Engineers from the CIP list and reallocating 
that $40k to contingencies.  
 
The Resources & Infrastructure Committee recommended that the Finance Committee proceed with the 
Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) program, with PG&E acting as the project manager, as well as 
moving forward with the initial payment to commence the investment grade audit (IGA). PG&E will be 
performing an IGA for the 12 items defined. If the District decides not to move forward with the IGA, the 
committee will need to review the list and perhaps move forward with the items this year. If the committee 
decides to move forward with the 12 items on the IGA, $160,000 is due to PG&E at signing. The funds 
will come out of the fiscal year 2018/19 budget. The potential benefits to moving forward with the program 
are that the work content will extend the useful life of the Wastewater Treatment Plant by approximately 
20 years and there will be a reduction in competing resources. District staff time would also be freed up 
to perform maintenance and operational work at the WWTP. 

22

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2019-05-14-resources-infrastructure-standing-committee-special-meeting
https://www.cambriacsd.org/2019-05-14-resources-infrastructure-standing-committee-special-meeting


 
 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Proposition 218 CIP Prioritization Water, Wastewater & SWF Spreadsheets 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date    Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS ___PIERSON___FARMER ___RICE ___ STEIDEL ____HOWELL ___  

23



Water Projects
Revised 6/18/2018

Preliminary costs need to be updated & tied to a an ENR/year basis. Expansion [X], % % % Priority

Ops Budget Replacement [R] X R O Ranking Check of total

Line/Project Account # Operations [O] 

No. Description      

FY 18/19 - 

1st half

FY18/19 - 2nd 

half

FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24 FY24/25 FY25/26 FY26/27 FY27/28

$ $ $ $ $

Annual Inflation (Percentage) 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Cumulative Inflation (Percentage) 109% 113% 116% 119% 123%

Water Distribution System Projects
1 Water Master Plan Amendment (revised fire flow modeling/tank sizing check) 6080M R/O/X 20 80 2 35,000$           35,000$               

2 Stuart Street Tank Replacement (125K gallon welded steel tank with new foundation) 2 458,000$           458,000$             

3  Water pipelines, pumps, and PRV repairs and replacements R/O 100 2 25,000$         50,000$           50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$                    50,000$             50,000$             475,000$             

4 Piney Way erosion control protection for existing pipeline 6035 O 100 3 10,000$           10,000$               

6 Study & predesign for pipeline in State Parks wetlands 3 30,000$           30,000$               

7A Inspection & spot repair to water transmission main under S. Parks wetlands area; or do 7B 20 80 3 80,000$             80,000$               

7B Lining of transmission main under S. Parks wetlands area (alt to relocate ~ $612K to $1.16 million), or do 7A 20 80 3 50,000$             150,000$           816,000$           1,016,000$         

8 Pressure zone 2 to zone 7 transmission main @ SR Creek pedestrian bridge 20 80 1 50,000$        70,000$         120,000$             

9 Subzone metering of distribution system 100 1 50,000$           50,000$             50,000$             150,000$             

10   Pine Knolls - Iva Court zone 1 pipeline expansion R/O 20 80 3 40,000$             125,000$           165,000$             

11 Replacement of problematic service lines within Leimert 3 10,000$         10,000$           10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$                    10,000$             10,000$             100,000$             

12 Water Meter Replacements & Upgrades R/O 75 25 1 50,000$        200,000$         200,000$           200,000$           200,000$           200,000$           1,050,000$         

13 Annual GIS updating & upgrades R/O 100 3 10,000$         10,000$           10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$                    10,000$             10,000$             100,000$             

14 Valve Replacements 2 10,000$        10,000$         20,000$           20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$                    20,000$             20,000$             200,000$             

15 Replacement of problematic service lines within Leimert 3 40,000$        10,000$             10,000$             10,000$             10,000$                    10,000$             10,000$             100,000$             

Water Treatment
16 Electonic self monitoring reporting program (yr 1 is software + consulting, yrs 2 + are annual tech support) 100   2 10,000$         1,000$             1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$                      1,000$               1,000$               19,000$               

Tank & Booster Pump Station Projects
17 Rodeo Grounds Pump Station Replacement (aka Zone 2 Booster pump station) R/X 20 80 2 15,000$        10,000$         101,000$         500,000$           400,000$           1,026,000$         

18 SCADA System - Long-term Water Portion R/O 50 50 3 10,000$         50,000$           50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             210,000$             

19 Electrical transfer switch and conduit to well SS-3 O 100 2 25,000$           25,000$               

20 San Simeon well field generator replacement R/O 20 80 2 100,000$           100,000$             

Water conservation
21 Database for water conservation program/tracking with parcel links & APN file conversion X/R/O 80 20 3 10,000$         10,000$           20,000$               

Vehicles & Trailer Mounted-Equipment
22 Replacement Dump Truck (76 K purchase with 6 yr loan @ 5% assumed) 1 13,000$        13,000$         13,000$           13,000$             13,000$             13,000$             78,000$               

24 Trailer Mounted Air Compressor 6170 O 100   2 22,700$        22,700$               

23 Trailer mounted, small capcity vactor 6170 O 100   2 48,000$        48,000$               

24 Vehicle Replacement Program 2 25,000$         25,000$           25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$                    25,000$             25,000$             250,000$             

Overhead Projects -$                     

25 Finance/billing software upgrade (water est'd @ 50%) R/O 100   1 50,000$         25,000$           75,000$               

26 Contingency/reserves (amount remains TBD) R/O 100   4 -$                     

27 User Fee study (water rates portion) 6080M O 100   1 -$                     

Subtotal water projects - noninflated $/yr 248,700$     253,000$       665,000$         1,199,000$        1,104,000$        1,663,000$        326,000$           126,000$           126,000$                  126,000$           126,000$           5,962,700$         

113,000$     133,000$       288,000$         263,000$           263,000$           213,000$           200,000$           -$                    -$                          -$                    -$                    1,473,000$         

95,700$        80,000$         257,000$         696,000$           496,000$           554,000$           96,000$             96,000$             96,000$                    96,000$             96,000$             2,658,700$         

40,000$        40,000$         120,000$         240,000$           345,000$           896,000$           30,000$             30,000$             30,000$                    30,000$             30,000$             1,831,000$         

-$              -$                -$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                          -$                    -$                    -$                     

 Cummulative water projects $ (all priority levels) 248,700$     501,700$       1,166,700$      2,365,700$        3,469,700$        5,132,700$        5,458,700$        5,584,700$        5,710,700$              5,836,700$        5,962,700$        5,962,700$         

Priority Level 2 projects:

Priority Level 1 projects:

Priority Level 4 projects:

Priority Level 3 projects:

24



Wastewater CIP - Capital Improvement Program DRAFT - For Discussion Only

Expansion [X], % % % Priority

Replacement [R] X R O Ranking

Line/Project Operations [O] 

No.      1st Half FY18/19 2nd Half FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24 FY24/25 FY25/26 FY26/27 Total

Wastewater Projects

Dependent on  

Proposed Rate 

Increase

Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects
1 Influent screen, support platform design, & installation R/O 20 80 1 150,000$                 150,000$            

2 Electrical engineering design & cost estimate for WWTP's main incoming power breaker & MCC work 20 80 1 50,000$                   50,000$              

3 Incoming power supply monitoring system R 20 80 2 25,000$           25,000$              

4 Neutral wire installation from PG&E-provided delta to wye main replacement transformer to main MCC R 20 80 1 20,000$           20,000$              

5A Replace WWTP main power supply breaker and auto-transfer switch; (or, do project 5B.) R 20 80 1 30,000$           30,000$              

5B Replace main incoming power Motor Control Center with Y-configuration supply; (or, do project 5A) R 20 80 1 300,000$         300,000$            

6 WWTP Update BNR Modeling  Update & Value Engineering (early half of FY) X/R/O 20 20 80 1 40,000$                   40,000$              

7 Aeration tank baffles, anoxic mixers, &  ML recirc system (later half of FY) R/O 20 80 1 40,000$                   80,000$           120,000$            

8 Automate aeration D.O. control system (CVs at air headers, press control @ main air header, new DO probes) X/R/O 20 20 80 2 50,000$                   100,000$         150,000$            

9 Upgrade/replace aeration blowers X/R/O 20 20 80 2 30,000$                   150,000$         180,000$            

10 Blower electrical room air filtration/conditioning for moisture & corrosion control 20 80 2 10,000$           10,000$              

11 Replace main WWTP backup power generator 20 80 2 200,000$         200,000$            

12 Replace digester catwalk handrailings, clean, and paint R 20 80 1 45,000$                   45,000$              

13 Cathodic protection replacements at digesters R 20 80 3 10,000$           10,000$              

14 Plant non-potable 3W improvements & non-potable sprays for screw press 20 80 1 15,000$           15,000$              

15 Improve grit tank hydraulic capacity (placeholder, insert approx $10K cost  if needed) X/R/O 20 20 80 1 -$                     

16 Repair or replace protective surge tank for plant effluent pipeline 20 80 2 25,000$           25,000$              

17 Long-term plant upgrades - new sludge digester, flow equalization improvements, denite/phosphorous removal 20 80 3 250,000$         250,000$         250,000$         250,000$         250,000$            250,000$            1,500,000$         

18 Demo and remove old flow equalization tanks in SW corner of plant 100 3 40,000$           40,000$              

19 Replace effluent punp (southern pump) 20 80 1 25,000$                   25,000$              

20 Annual electrical & instrumentation improvements X/R/O 20 20 80 2 60,000$                   60,000$           60,000$           60,000$           60,000$           60,000$           360,000$            

21 SCADA System - WWTP - long-term improvements X/R/O 20 20 80 2 25,000$                   25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$              25,000$              25,000$              225,000$            

22 Effluent P.S. bypass piping 20 80 1 20,000$           20,000$              

23 Miscl WWTP lab upgrades & investment in electronic self-monitoring reporting 20 80 1 10,000$                   10,000$           3,000$              3,000$              3,000$              3,000$              3,000$                 3,000$                 3,000$                 41,000$              

Collection System Projects
24 SCADA System - Collections System  - long-term improvements X/R/O 20 20 80 2 25,000$                   25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$              25,000$              25,000$              225,000$            

25 Collection System smoke testing 100 2 50,000$                   50,000$              

26 Annual manhole inspections and report on needed corrections (approx. 20% of system/yr) 100 2 40,000$                   40,000$           40,000$           40,000$           40,000$           200,000$            

27 Collection System Phased televising & cleaning R/O 100 2 100,000$                 100,000$         100,000$         100,000$         100,000$         500,000$            

28 Collection System Assessment software (E.g, t4 Spatial or other) 100 2 10,000$                   10,000$              

29 Collection System Assessment/engineering for repairs 100 2 30,000$                   30,000$           30,000$           30,000$           30,000$           150,000$            

30 Collection System Repairs to reduce I/I & damaged pipe sections 100 2 50,000$                   50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$              50,000$              50,000$              450,000$            

31 Manhole raising due to street overlays & roadway work 20 80 1 10,000$                   10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$              10,000$              10,000$              90,000$              

32 Lift Station A (Nottingham & Leighton/Park Hill) new control panel at grade el. X/R/O 20 20 80 1 10,000$                   80,000$           90,000$              

33 Lift Station A (Nottingham & Leighton/Park Hill) new submsersible pumps, MCC, bypass piping X/R/O 20 20 80 2 50,000$           350,000$         400,000$            

34 Lift Station A-1 (Sherwood & Harvey/Marine Terrace) new control panel at grade el. X/R/O 20 20 80 1 60,000$                   60,000$              

35 Lift Station A-1 (Sherwood & Harvey/Marine Terrace) submersible pumps, MCC, bypass piping X/R/O 20 20 80 2 40,000$           225,000$         265,000$            

36 Lift Sation 4 (DeVault Pl/Seaclift Estates)  VFDs /new elect panel & 3 phase pump motors R/O 20 80 3 25,000$           60,000$           85,000$              

37 Lift Sation B improvements (SR Creek/behind Park Hill) new control panel X/R/O 20 20 80 1 30,000$           30,000$              

38 Lift Station B - new wet well, submersible pumps, and valve vault (placeholder) X/R/O 20 20 80 1 300,000$         300,000$            

39 Lift Station B - replace existing generator X/R/O 20 20 80 2 60,000$           60,000$              

40 Lift Station B-1 (Village Ln/Tin City) relocate away from Feb 2017 landslide area (potential 50% FEMA 406 funding) X/R/O 20 20 80 1 300,000$         300,000$            

41 Lift Station B-2 (Wood Dr./E. Lodge Hill) new control panel at grade el. X/R/O 20 20 80 1 75,000$           35,000$           315,000$            425,000$            

42 Lift Station B-3 (Green St./W. Lodge Hill) new control panel followed by future submserible pumps, MCC, bypass piping X/R/O 20 20 80 2 90,000$           160,000$         250,000$            

43 Lift Station B-4 (Green & Gleason/W. Lodge Hill) new submserible pumps, bypass piping X/R/O 20 20 80 2 20,000$           240,000$         260,000$            

44 Lift station 9 - replace corroded main incoming power breaker 100 1 8,000$                      8,000$                 

45 Replacement and New PCs for operators 20 80 2 10,000$                   10,000$           20,000$              

46 Annual maintenance and upgrading to GIS R/O 20 80 3 10,000$                   10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$              10,000$              10,000$              95,000$              

Vehicles and Trailer- Mounted Equipment

47 Vactor truck - replace with new $450K truck that meets emssion requirements (10 yr loan @ 4.5%) 20 80 2 56,000$                   56,000$           56,000$           56,000$           56,000$           56,000$           56,000$              56,000$              56,000$              504,000$            

48 Vehicle Replacement Program 100 3 25,000$                   25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$              25,000$              25,000$              250,000$            

49 Portable equipment replacement program (backhos, generators and pumps) 4 15,000$                   15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$              15,000$              15,000$              150,000$            

Overhead CIP Projects
50 Finance/billing software upgrade (wastewater est'd @ 50%) R/O 20 80 3 25,000$                   50,000$           75,000$              

51 Contingency/reserves (amount remains TBD) X/R/O 20 20 80 4 -$                     

195,000$                 864,000$                 1,981,000$      969,000$         809,000$         1,974,000$      574,000$         784,000$            469,000$            219,000$            8,883,000$         

195,000$                 253,000$                 970,000$         13,000$           13,000$           313,000$         48,000$           328,000$            13,000$              13,000$              2,159,000$         

-$                          536,000$                 846,000$         586,000$         496,000$         1,361,000$      226,000$         156,000$            156,000$            156,000$            4,519,000$         

-$                          60,000$                   150,000$         355,000$         285,000$         285,000$         285,000$         285,000$            285,000$            35,000$              2,055,000$         

-$                          15,000$                   15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           15,000$              15,000$              15,000$              150,000$            

Cummulative Total 240,000$                 1,104,000$              2,221,000$      3,190,000$      3,999,000$      5,973,000$      6,547,000$      7,331,000$         7,800,000$         8,019,000$         8,883,000$         

Total Per Year (all priorities)

Check of total

Projected

6/18/2018 revision 11:41am

Priority Level 1 projects:

Priority Level 2 projects:

Priority Level 3 projects:

Priority Level 4 projects:

25



SWF Projects Revised 6/19/2018

Preliminary costs need to be updated & tied to a an ENR/year basis. Expansion [X], % % % Priority

Total Project Outside Grant Ops Budget Replacement [R] X R O Ranking Check of total

Line/Project Estimate Funding Account # Operations [O] % % %

No. Description  X R O  

First Half 

FY18/19

2nd Half 

FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24 FY24/25 FY26/27 FY27/28

$ $ $ $ $

Annual Inflation (Percentage) 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

Cumulative Inflation (Percentage) 112.55% 112.55% 115.93% 119.41% 122.99%

SWF Projects

Regular Coastal Development Permitting Support
1 EIR consulting (follow up agency discussions to support  the SWF's Regular CDP) 20 80 1 10,000$       10,000$           20,000$              

2 Section 7 ESA consulting, annual AMP report, & AMP update 20 80 1 125,000$     125,000$            

3 Legal assistance for CEQA support and any subsequent appeals (amounts each year remain to be determined and are not shown)

Off-Site RO Concentrate Disposal Mods
4 Interim Mods at SWF for trailer fill station (portable pump, rented spill contrainment/loading pad, reuse rented Baker tanks 1 50,000$       50,000$              

5 Future permanent mods at SWF for trailer fill station [piping & spill contrainment/loading pad] (1,2) 20 80 2 200,000$        200,000$            

Advanced Water Treatment Plant Improvements
6 AWTP pull-barn style covers for outdoor equipment & control panels (1,2) 20 80 2 50,000$           50,000$              

7 Miscelaneous instrumentation - monitoring upgrades, added effluent flow meter 20 80 1 10,000$       10,000$              

8 Sems, Hach WIMS, or custom programmer for logging/reporting software and tablets (yr 1 is software/programming assistance) 20 80 2 4,000$         6,000$         2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             26,000$              

9 Installation of remote sensing instrumentation at SS creek (needs access agreement with State Parks) 20 80 3 10,000$           10,000$              

Long-Term Improvement Modifications
10 Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) for Holding Basin and Well SS-1 treatment 20 80 3 150,000$        600,000$        600,000$        1,350,000$         

11 Pipeline from Well SS-1 to surface water treatment plant (SWTP) 20 80 3 75,000$           350,000$        425,000$            

12 Impoundment basin conversion to groundwater storage, pump station at storage basin , and connecting pipelines 20 80 3 75,000$           350,000$        425,000$            

13 Solar Array System(1,2) 3 375,000$        375,000$            

2017 Cease & Desist Order Compliance - Non-capitalized Expenses
14 Short term flood damage/CDO response  - consultants for surveying , project mngt assistance& inspection, surface water hydrology & geohydrological 20 80 1 -$                     

15 Short term flood damage mitigation - drainage swale construction 20 80 1 -$                     

16 Short term flood damage mitigation - closure plan equipment, installation, rentals, and temp power & controls 100 1 10,000$       10,000$              

17 Hauling off the last 18-inches of impoundment water & emptied impoundment cleaning 100 1 35,000$       35,000$              

244,000$     6,000$         647,000$        2,000$             2,000$             152,000$        752,000$        1,302,000$     2,000$             2,000$             3,111,000$         

240,000$     -$             10,000$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 250,000$            

4,000$         6,000$         252,000$        2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             276,000$            

-$             -$             385,000$        -$                 -$                 150,000$        750,000$        1,300,000$     -$                 -$                 2,585,000$         

-$             -$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                     

244,000$     250,000$     891,000$        893,000$        895,000$        1,047,000$     1,799,000$     3,101,000$     3,103,000$     3,105,000$     3,111,000$         

Notes: Red font indicates future projects that may qualify for Army Corps project funding via the existing federal Water Resource Development Act (WRDA) grant. If appoved by 

Army Corps, costs could become zero due to past local share cost credit (see note 2 below).

1 Solar array estimated at 250 KW, & approximately $1.50 per KW installed.  Future candidate for Renewable Energy System Credit Transfer (RESCT), which could  

conceivably allow applying production towards remote CCSD electrical loads, such as WWTP.

2 Cost shown do not include any reduction from a 75% federally-funded existing WRDA grant with the Army Corps and are subject to the terms of a project cooperative 

agreement.  Costs shown do not include any  local share credit of approximately $3 million, which as previously approved by the Army Corps.  The grant, as well as 

proposed cost components, need to be revisited with the Army Corps and incorporated into the Corps project management plan updating process.

Shading indicates the cells included within the CIP totals (I.e., totals do not include operational costs nor potential future costs.)

Potential Future Expenses
16 French drain @ impoundment to control groundwater level (implemented should hauling costs become prohibitively high) 20 80 3 TBD unknown

17 Flood water diversion from roadway to creek (implemented should hauling costs become prohibitively high) 20 80 3 TBD unknown

Off Hauling & Disposal of RO Concentrate - Operatinal Costs

18 RO Concentrate hauling (est'd at $350/6000-gallon truckload hauled, 18000 gallons per day, 5 days/week, 3 mos per yr.  ) 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 567,000

19 Rental of semi-tractor to pull 6000-gallon trailers (est'd at $220 per day, 3 mos per yr). 100 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 118,800

20 Disposal fee at pt of discharge (45 days/yr operation at 18,000 gallons per day, $0.12 per gallon) 100 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 129,600 1,166,400

Operational Expenses
21 Annual RO membrane & microfilter contract maintenance service 100 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 180,000

22 Annual Adaptive management Plan (AMP) monitoring by biologist 100 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 50,000

230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 230,800 2,082,200

Notes:

1 Solar array estimated at 250 KW, & approximately $1.50 per KW installed

2 Shown because cost could be 75% federally funded via existing WRDA grant with Army Corps (I.e., Local match would be $375,000 X .25 ~ $94,000)

Future candidate for Renewable Energy System Credit Transfer (RESCT) to allow applying production towards remote CCSD electrical loads, such as WWTP.

Shading indicates the cells included within the CIP totals (I.e., totals do not include operational costs nor potential future costs.)

subotal non-CIP/unknown potential SWF projects - noninflated $/yr

 cummulative SWF projects $ (CIP projects, levels 1 through 4)

subotal SWF CIP projects - noninflated $/yr

Priority Level 1 projects:

Priority Level 2 projects:

Priority Level 3 projects:

Priority Level 4 projects:

26



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 3.C. 
       
FROM: Pamela Duffield, Finance Manager 
VIA:  Paavo Ogren, Interim General Manger 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019  Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
        OF A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT TO  
        REFLECT THE TYLER SOFTWARE  
        ACQUISITIONS IN FISCAL YEAR  
        2018/2019, APPROVE CHANGE 
        ORDER NOS. 2 & 3 AND ADOPTION  
        OF RESOLUTION 27-2019 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 27-2019 approving a budget 
adjustment to reflect the Tyler Software acquisitions in FY 2018/2019 and approve Change 
Order Nos. 2 and 3. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Staff recommends that the Board approve a budget adjustment to upgrade the financial 
accounting software program. The total project cost for the financial accounting software 
program is a one-time fee in the amount $68,850, plus an additional one-time fee of $7,200 for 
the purchase of Fixed Asset and Work Order Modules. This budget adjustment will increase 
the allocated administrative overhead by $76,050, which is charged to each department, as 
illustrated in Exhibit A of Resolution 27-2019. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
On March 22, 2018, the Board approved an agreement with Tyler Technologies for purchase 
and implementation of a financial accounting software system. The budget for this purchase 
was to be phased in over FY 2017/2018 and FY 2018/2019. Due to the change in staffing over 
these fiscal periods, the one-time cost of $68,850 to purchase the financial accounting 
software system was inadvertently overlooked during the budget process.  
 
In addition, staff has continued to evaluate other software modules available from Tyler 
Technologies. Staff and the Tyler Implementation Ad-hoc Committee participated in a webinar 
with Tyler Technologies to evaluate the benefits of purchasing the Fixed Asset and Work Order 
Modules. There are many benefits to be gained by purchasing each module, as listed in the 
attached product sheets. Listed below are a few areas staff identified where efficiencies can be 
gained, if these modules are purchased: 
 
Fixed Assets Module 

• Integrated fixed asset acquisition, tracking of CCSD fixed assets, depreciation 
calculations and disposal of equipment. 

• Links fixed assets to work orders for preventative maintenance. 
 

27



 
 

2 

 
Work Orders 

• Integrated work order tracking system for maintaining labor, material and equipment 
use. 

• Scheduling of planned or preventative maintenance for CCSD fixed assets. 

• Interdepartmental work requests and tracking of such costs. 
 
The cost for these modules total $7,200 (Fixed Asset $1,200 and Work Order $6,000) and will 
also increase the annual system maintenance by $3,979.  
 
Staff and the Tyler Implementation Ad-hoc Committee recommend purchasing both modules 
and authorizing the Interim General Manager to amend the agreement as required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 27-2019 

Exhibit A to Resolution 27-2019 
  Change Order No. 2  
  Change Order No. 3 
  Product Sheets for Fixed Asset and Work Order Modules 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___PIERSON___FARMER___RICE___STEIDEL___HOWELL___ 

28



  Page 1 of 1 

  Resolution 27-2019 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2019 
June 20, 2019 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 BUDGET RELATING TO  
ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE (TYLER TECHNOLOGIES) 

 
  

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2018, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 26-
2018 approving the final budget for Fiscal Year 2018/19; and 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 61111(a) authorizes the board of 
directors of a community services district to amend the budget by resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of contracting for accounting software with Tyler 
Technologies and approving Change Order Nos. 2 & No. 3, the Board of 
Directors desires to amend the Fiscal Year 2018/19 budget. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District that the amendment to the Fiscal Year 
2018/19 budget as shown on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference, is hereby approved.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June, 2019. 
 
 
        
            
      David Pierson, Board President 
 
  
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Monique Madrid    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

29



Budget Adjustments - Recommended

Fund Date Agenda Item Purpose Sources Uses

GF-Fire Dept Increase Administrative Cost Allocation 19,013$     

GF-Fire Dept Unanticipated Revenues 19,013$    

Fund Sub-Total 19,013$    19,013$     

GF-Fac & Res Increase Administrative Cost Allocation 4,563$      

GF-Fac & Res Unanticipated Revenues 4,563$    

Fund Sub-Total 4,563$    4,563$      

GF-PROS Increase Administrative Cost Allocation 1,141$      

GF-PROS Unanticipated Revenues 1,141$    

Fund Sub-Total 1,141$    1,141$      

GF-Admin Increase Capital Outlay 76,050$     

GF-Admin Increase Adminstrative Cost Allocation 76,050$    

Fund Sub-Total 76,050$    76,050$     

General Fund Total 100,767$      100,767$     

Wastewater Increase Administrative Cost Allocation 19,773$     

Wastewater Unanticipated Wastewater Sales Revenue 19,773$    -$    

Fund Sub-Total 19,773$    19,773$     

Water Increase Administrative Cost Allocation - Water -$   19,773$    

SWF - Ops Increase Administrative Cost Allocation - SWF Ops -$   8,822$     

SWF- Capital Increase Administrative Cost Allocation - SWF Capital -$   2,966$     

Water Unanticipated Water Sales Revenue 31,561$    -$   

Fund Sub-Total 31,561$    31,561$     

Enterprise Funds Total 51,334$    51,334$     

EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION 27-2019       

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FY 2018/2019 ADOPTED BUDGET

RECOMMENDED BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

Page 1 of 1 30



 
Quoted By: Kip Winget 
Quote Expiration: 8/30/2019 
Quote Name: Cambria CSD- FA 
Quote Number: 2019-74038 
Quote Description:  

Sales Quotation For
Pam Duffield 
Cambria Community Services District 
PO Box 65 
Cambria , CA 93428-0065 
Phone: +1 (805) 927-6223 
Email: pduffield@cambriacsd.org 

 

 
 
 

Tyler Software and Related Services - SaaS One Time Fees  

Description  Impl. Hours Impl. Cost Data Conversion Annual Fee
Financial Management Suite 
Fixed Assets   12 $1,260 $0 $884 

Sub-Total:  $1,260 $0 $884 
TOTAL: 12 $1,260 $0 $884 

 
Summary One Time Fees Recurring Fees
Total Tyler SaaS $0 $884 
Total Tyler Services $1,260 $0 
Total Third Party Hardware, Software and Services $0 $0 
Summary Total  $1,260  $884 
 
 

2019-74038 - CONFIDENTIAL 1 of  2 

 

31



 Client agrees that items in this sales quotation are, upon Client's signature or approval of same, hereby added to the existing agreement
("Agreement") between the parties and subject to its terms. Additionally, payment for said items, as applicable but subject to any listed
assumptions herein, shall conform to the following terms: 
• License fees for Tyler and third party software are invoiced upon the earlier of (i) deliver of the license key or (ii) when Tyler makes such software
available for download by the Client; 
• Fees for hardware are invoiced upon delivery; 
• Fees for year one of hardware maintenance are invoiced upon delivery of the hardware; 
• Annual Maintenance and Support fees, SaaS fees, Hosting fees, and Subscription fees are first payable when Tyler makes the software available
for download by the Client (for Maintenance) or on the first day of the month following the date this quotation was signed (for SaaS, Hosting, and  
Subscription), and any such fees are prorated to align with the applicable term under the Agreement, with renewals invoiced annually thereafter in
accord with the Agreement. 
• Fees for services included in this sales quotation shall be invoiced as indicated below. 
• Implementation and other professional services fees shall be invoiced as delivered. 
• Fixed-fee Business Process Consulting services shall be invoiced 50% upon delivery of the Best Practice Recommendations, by module, and  
50% upon delivery of custom desktop procedures, by module. 
• Fixed-fee conversions are invoiced 50% upon initial delivery of the converted data, by conversion option, and 50% upon Client acceptance to
load the converted data into Live/Production environment, by conversion option. Where conversions are quoted as estimated, Tyler will invoice
Client     the actual services delivered on a time and materials basis. 
• Except as otherwise provided, other fixed price services are invoiced upon complete delivery of the service. For the avoidance of doubt, where
"Project Planning Services" are provided, payment shall be invoiced upon delivery of the Implementation Planning document. Dedicated Project   
Management services, if any, will be invoiced monthly in arrears, beginning on the first day of the month immediately following initiation of project  
planning. 
• If Client has purchased any change management services, those services will be invoiced in accordance with the Agreement. 
• Expenses associated with onsite services are invoiced as incurred.

 NOTICE- Travel Expenses are Not Included in the totals. 

Comments

2019-74038 - CONFIDENTIAL 2 of  2 

 

32



 
Quoted By: Kip Winget 
Quote Expiration: 8/30/2019 
Quote Name: Cambria CSD- WO 
Quote Number: 2019-74039 
Quote Description:  

Sales Quotation For
Pam Duffield 
Cambria Community Services District 
PO Box 65 
Cambria , CA 93428-0065 
Phone: +1 (805) 927-6223 
Email: pduffield@cambriacsd.org 

 

 
 
 

Tyler Software and Related Services - SaaS One Time Fees  

Description  Impl. Hours Impl. Cost Data Conversion Annual Fee
Customer Relationship Management Suite 
Work Orders   60 $6,300 $0 $3,095 

Sub-Total:  $6,300 $0 $3,095 
TOTAL: 60 $6,300 $0 $3,095 

 
Summary One Time Fees Recurring Fees
Total Tyler SaaS $0 $3,095 
Total Tyler Services $6,300 $0 
Total Third Party Hardware, Software and Services $0 $0 
Summary Total  $6,300  $3,095 
 
 

2019-74039 - CONFIDENTIAL 1 of  2 

 

33



 Client agrees that items in this sales quotation are, upon Client's signature or approval of same, hereby added to the existing agreement
("Agreement") between the parties and subject to its terms. Additionally, payment for said items, as applicable but subject to any listed
assumptions herein, shall conform to the following terms: 
• License fees for Tyler and third party software are invoiced upon the earlier of (i) deliver of the license key or (ii) when Tyler makes such software
available for download by the Client; 
• Fees for hardware are invoiced upon delivery; 
• Fees for year one of hardware maintenance are invoiced upon delivery of the hardware; 
• Annual Maintenance and Support fees, SaaS fees, Hosting fees, and Subscription fees are first payable when Tyler makes the software available
for download by the Client (for Maintenance) or on the first day of the month following the date this quotation was signed (for SaaS, Hosting, and  
Subscription), and any such fees are prorated to align with the applicable term under the Agreement, with renewals invoiced annually thereafter in
accord with the Agreement. 
• Fees for services included in this sales quotation shall be invoiced as indicated below. 
• Implementation and other professional services fees shall be invoiced as delivered. 
• Fixed-fee Business Process Consulting services shall be invoiced 50% upon delivery of the Best Practice Recommendations, by module, and  
50% upon delivery of custom desktop procedures, by module. 
• Fixed-fee conversions are invoiced 50% upon initial delivery of the converted data, by conversion option, and 50% upon Client acceptance to
load the converted data into Live/Production environment, by conversion option. Where conversions are quoted as estimated, Tyler will invoice
Client     the actual services delivered on a time and materials basis. 
• Except as otherwise provided, other fixed price services are invoiced upon complete delivery of the service. For the avoidance of doubt, where
"Project Planning Services" are provided, payment shall be invoiced upon delivery of the Implementation Planning document. Dedicated Project   
Management services, if any, will be invoiced monthly in arrears, beginning on the first day of the month immediately following initiation of project  
planning. 
• If Client has purchased any change management services, those services will be invoiced in accordance with the Agreement. 
• Expenses associated with onsite services are invoiced as incurred.

 NOTICE- Travel Expenses are Not Included in the totals. 

Comments

2019-74039 - CONFIDENTIAL 2 of  2 

 

34



15c 68y 39k  74c 52m 17k  

Usage:
• Digital printing
• Internal printing

Tyler Digital Printing
CMYK Logo

For more information, visit 
www.tylertech.com

or email 
info@tylertech.com

The Tyler logo, design mark and tagline are registered trademarks of Tyler Technologies, Inc. © 2010, all rights reserved. 

IN
-F

A-
PS

-1
78

7-
10

10

Tyler’s Incode Fixed Assets is a comprehensive asset management solution designed specifically 

for the public sector. It provides organizations a powerful tool for tracking and reporting on all 

fixed assets throughout the life cycle. As an added convenience, assets acquired through other 

integrated Incode Financial modules can be automatically posted to Fixed Assets. This module 

reduces duplicate data entry and sets the standard for complete financial integration with 

automated tracking, management, accounting, and reporting of assets.

Incode Fixed Assets “The overall 
presentation of the 
software is impressive! 
It is very easy to use…”

—Debbie Fransen, Heritage 
Ranch Community Services 

District, CA

Information & Reports
Tracks assets for multiple funds, •	
departments, and locations. 

Tracks detailed information for an •	
asset such as insurance policies, 
acquisition and disposition details, 
and maintenance-related details such 
as asset condition, warranty, repairs, 
and maintenance contracts. 

Tracks improvements or additions to •	
existing assets.

Offers multiple methods for •	
depreciation reporting (Straight Line, 
Declining Balance, Double Declining 
Balance, Modified Accelerated Cost 
Recovery, and more).

Generates a range of master file •	
reports through flexible reporting.

Transfers data selectively to remote •	
users through a mobile device 
interface for easy location verification 
and updates asset data using barcode 
scanning technology.

Links specified assets to Incode Work •	
Orders for preventative maintenance.

Transaction Efficiency
Manages assets by their original serial •	
number or through the use of a defined  
tag number.

Tracks multiple user-defined asset •	
classes automatically.

Establishes relationships between •	
individual asset records through the 
use of asset types.

Creates a new asset based on an •	
existing record using the built-in  
copy function.

Gives users multiple options for •	
selecting assets for depreciation 
calculation.

Records the transfer of assets. This  •	
process automates the transfer of 
assets from one fund to another, 
including the appropriate transfer of 
Incode General Ledger information.

Automates the asset disposal process, •	
including calculation of gain or loss on 
asset sales, and creates all necessary 
transactions to properly record asset 
disposal in the Incode General Ledger.

...continued on reverse

35



For more information, visit www.tylertech.com

15c 68y 39k  74c 52m 17k  

Usage:
• Digital printing
• Internal printing

Tyler Digital Printing
CMYK Logo

User Friendly
Provides efficient, comprehensive system integration.•	

Gives users the ability to review and evaluate items posted •	
to Fixed Asset G/L accounts in a preliminary asset file to 
determine proper accounting treatment.

Delivers code-driven information tracking capabilities, •	
fostering consistency in data entry and greater flexibility in 
report generation.

Captures multiple user-defined data elements through use •	
of comment codes.

Incode Fixed Assets

36



For more information, visit www.tylertech.com

                                                    © 2017 Tyler Technologies, Inc., All rights reserved.

For more information, visit

www.tylertech.com

or email info@tylertech.com

The Incode® Work Orders module gives clients the ability to enter and maintain labor 

hours, material costs and equipment usages against issued work orders. This module 

efficiently creates general ledger transactions for interdepartmental charges. Work Orders 

integrates with Accounts Payable, Fixed Assets, Inventory, Project Accounting and 

General Ledger. 

 
•	 Preventative maintenance tracks 

usage based on hours or mileage  
and creates a work order based on 
that usage. 

•	 Allows users to initiate work orders 
from user-defined estimates.  

•	 Calculates overhead, which can  
be a flat rate or a percentage of  
user-specified costs

•	 Quickly creates work orders from  
user-defined templates. 

•	 Supports workflow by providing 
work requests that can be approved, 
rejected or used to initiate work 
orders.  

•	 Allows for effortless interdepartmental 
setup to create charges between 
departments. 

•	 Provides a convenient calendar  
view to display the user’s assigned 
work orders.

•	 Tracks equipment used for work 
orders and displays the equipment 
information, maintenance history  
and usage. 

Integrations
Accounts Payable

•	 Assigns a work order number to an 
invoice for materials, supplies or other 
expenses. The invoice amount posts 
to the work order as an expense.

General Ledger

•	 Integrates at the transaction level so 
that both General Ledger and Work 
Orders remain in balance. 

•	 Charges the costs of the work order  
to the department that requested  
the work.

•	 Records revenue for the cost of the 
work order to the department that 
performed the work.

•	 Automatically creates interfund 
balancing entries when posting  
work order transactions across 
multiple funds. 

Inventory

•	 Creates requests for inventory items 
that may be disbursed to complete 
the work order.

•	 Updates inventory based on the 
number of units disbursed.

•	 Assigns material costs of inventory 
items to the work order.

Fixed Assets

•	 Work orders may be created to track 
improvements to an asset. All work 
order costs post to the asset as an 
improvement. 

•	 Work order equipment may be linked 
to an asset. Work orders are tracked 
on the asset for historical purposes. 

Project Accounting

•	 Work order costs may post to a 
specific project account.

IN
-B

AR
E-

PS
-7

31
8-

02
17

Incode Work Orders

incode
a tyler erp solution

Work Order Management

37



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 3.D. 

FROM: Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk   

Meeting Date: June 20, 2019 Subject: DISCUSSION REGARDING FINANCE, 

POLICY AND RESOURCES & 

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 

BYLAWS  

RECOMMENDATION:  
It is recommended that the Board of Directors discuss the 2019 Finance, Policy and 
Resources & Infrastructure Committees’ draft Bylaws, consider revisions and approve or 
provide direction as deemed appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
No fiscal impact has been identified with this item.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Director Steidel will lead the discussion regarding the 2019 Finance Committee Bylaws. 
 
Director Rice will lead the discussion regarding the 2019 Policy Committee Bylaws. 
 
Director Howell will lead the discussion regarding the 2019 Resources & Infrastructure 
Committee Bylaws. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: Finance Committee Bylaws 
Policy Committee Bylaws 
Resources & Infrastructure Committee Bylaws 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:   

UNANIMOUS:  ___PIERSON___FARMER___RICE___STEIDEL___HOWELL___ 

 

 

38



Addendum 1A 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 3.E. 
 

FROM: Paavo Ogren, Interim General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019  Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 28- 
        2019 APPROVING AN EMPLOYMENT  
        AGREEMENT WITH JOHN F.   
        WEIGOLD, IV FOR GENERAL   
        MANAGER SERVICES AND   
        AMENDING THE CCSD SALARY  
        SCHEDULE AND PAY SCHEDULE  
        FOR GENERAL MANAGER  
   

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 28-2019 approving an 
Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) with John F. Weigold, IV for General Manager services, 
and amending the CCSD Salary Schedule and pay schedule for the position of General 
Manager. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
Approval of the Resolution will result in a salary cost of $155,000 annually for the first six months 
of the Agreement and $170,000 annually for the following five years. Additional compensation 
and benefits in the form of those paid to other management employees could cost the District 
$51,194 per year, depending on which benefit options are selected. The Preliminary FY 
2019/2020 Budget includes salary & benefits for the General Manager position, so a budget 
adjustment is not required for this action.  
 
 

DISCUSSION:  
At the May 31, 2019 special meeting, the Board of Directors held a closed session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957 to discuss the interviews with the candidates for the General 
Manager position. Thereafter, at the June 13, 2019 regular meeting, the Board held a closed 
session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 to instruct its negotiators, President 
Pierson and District Counsel Carmel, regarding the prospective General Manager’s salary and 
benefits. 
 
Based upon the Board’s direction, President Pierson and District Counsel Carmel have 
negotiated the attached Agreement, which has been executed by Mr. Weigold and is being 
presented to the Board for its approval.  
 
CalPERS requires that salaries be paid pursuant to publicly available pay schedules, which must 
also comply with California Code of Regulations Section 570.5. Accordingly, the attached 
Resolution also amends the CCSD pay schedule to reflect the salary in the Employment 
Agreement.    
 
 
 
 

39



 

 
 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 28-2019 

Exhibit “A” Employment Agreement 
Exhibit “B” Salary Schedule 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___PIERSON___FARMER___RICE___STEIDEL___HOWELL___ 

40



Addendum 1A 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 28-2019 

June 20, 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

APPROVING AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

JOHN F. WEIGOLD, IV AND AMENDING  

THE DISTRICT’S SALARY SCHEDULE  

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 

as follows: 

 

1. The Employment Agreement between the Cambria Community Services District 

and John F. Weigold, IV, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein 

by reference, is hereby approved. 

 

2. The Board President is authorized to execute the Employment Agreement on 

behalf of the Cambria Community Services District. 

 

3. The revised Cambria Community Services District Salary Schedule, attached 

hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved.   

 

4. In accordance with CalPERS regulations and CCR 570.5, the payrate and pay 

schedule for the position of General Manager is hereby revised and shall be based 

upon a monthly base salary of $12,916.67, or $155,000 annually, for the period 

commencing upon Mr. Weigold’s employment with the District (August 1, 2019,or 

sooner) thru January 31, 2020, and a monthly base salary of $14,166.67, or 

$170,000 annually, beginning on February 1, 2020. 

 

5. This Resolution and the salaries contained in Exhibit B shall constitute a publicly 

available pay schedule as required by Government Code Section 20480. Pursuant 

to CCR 570.5, it shall be immediately accessible and available for public review 

during the District’s normal business hours. 

 

6. This pay schedule shall be effective immediately on the date of the adoption of this 

Resolution. This Resolution and the pay schedule contained herein shall be 

retained by the District in its official records on a permanent basis. 

 

 

41



Resolution No. 28-2019  Cambria Community Services District 
June 20, 2019  Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

       David Pierson, President 

       Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

              

Monique Madrid, District Clerk Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

42



1

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) made and entered into this day 
of              , 2019, by and between the Cambria Community Services District (hereinafter 
referred to as “Employer” or “CCSD”) and John F. Weigold, IV (hereinafter referred to 
as “Employee”), who understand as follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of Employee as General 
Manager; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Employer to provide certain benefits, establish 
certain conditions of employment and to set working conditions of Employee; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Employer to receive and retain the services of 
Employee and to provide for him to remain in such employment; to make possible full 
work productivity by assuring his morale and peace of mind; to act as a deterrent against 
malfeasance, misfeasance or substandard performance on his part; and to provide for 
terminating his services at such time as he may be unable to fully discharge his duties or 
when Employer may otherwise desire to terminate his employment; and

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as General Manager; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, 
the parties agree as follows:

1. Duties of General Manager

Employee agrees to perform the functions and duties of the position of General 
Manager, and any additional duties as may be assigned from time to time. A general 
description of the duties and responsibilities of the General Manager is attached to this 
Agreement and is incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit A. In addition,
Employee shall perform the statutorily required duties of a general manager of a 
community services district, as set forth in Government Code Section 61051, which 
provides as follows:

(a) The implementation of the policies established by the board of directors for the
operation of the district.

(b) The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the district’s
employees, consistent with the employee relations system established by the
board of directors.

(c) The supervision of the district’s facilities and services.
(d) The supervision of the district’s finances.

June

Addendum 1A43



2

2. Term of Agreement

This Agreement commences upon its execution by the parties, and shall remain in 
effect through July 31, 2024. Employee shall begin his employment with the District on 
August 1, 2019 or sooner.

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right 
of Employer to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of Employee to resign at any time from 
his position with Employer, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 4 of this 
Agreement.

3. Devotion to District Business and Hours of Work

The General Manager position is considered a full-time position. Therefore, except 
as otherwise provided herein, Employee shall not engage in any outside business, 
educational, professional, charitable, or other activities, whether for compensation or 
otherwise, that would conflict or materially interfere with performance of the General
Manager duties, without written prior approval by the Board of Directors. As a full-time 
position, Employee’s work schedule shall generally be consistent with the normal 
business hours adopted by the CCSD and those necessary to fulfill the obligations of 
General Manager, including being available to attend all necessary meetings during 
evenings and weekends. In recognition of the amount of work time required outside of 
regular business hours, it is agreed the General Manager does not have a fixed schedule 
and Employee will have the discretion to work as needed to accomplish the duties and 
responsibilities assigned to the General Manager.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that due to a 
preexisting teaching obligation, Employee will not be available on Mondays through 
December 31, 2019. The teaching commitment shall be deemed to be an activity that 
does not conflict with or materially interfere with his performance of duties as General 
Manager.

4. Termination 

Employee understands that he has no constitutionally protected property or other 
interests in his employment as General Manager. Employee understands and expressly 
agrees that he serves in the General Manager position at the will and pleasure of the 
Board of Directors and that he may be terminated or asked to resign from that position at 
any time by the Board of Directors, without cause, for any reason or for no reason, 
immediately upon notice to Employee.

5. Salary

For the period commencing August 1, 2019 thru January 31, 2020, Employer 
agrees to pay Employee a monthly base salary of $12,916.67, or $155,000 annually, for 

Addendum 1A44



3

his services. The monthly base salary shall be adjusted to $14,166.67, or $170,000 
annually, on February 1, 2020. Subsequent increases in salary may be considered 
annually by the Board of Directors at the time of Employee’s performance evaluation.

6. Other Compensation

Employer agrees to provide Employee additional compensation and benefits as 
provided to other management employees of the CCSD. Employee agrees to pay one-
hundred percent (100%) of the Employee designated share of the contribution to the 
Public Employees Retirement System in accordance with Section 2.08.150 of the CCSD 
Municipal Code. In addition, Employee shall receive the following benefits:

A. Employee shall be reimbursed at the standard CCSD mileage rate for all 
District business travel miles outside of San Luis Obispo County in his 
personal vehicle.

B. Employee shall accrue 10 days of vacation leave per year, which shall be 
subject to the two (2) year cap on accrual of leave time in accordance with 
the CCSD’s Payment and Compensation Plan. Effective February 1, 2020, 
Employee will accrue 15 days of vacation leave per year, subject to the cap.

C. Employee will be provided with a $100,000 life insurance policy.  The 
District will pay the full monthly premium for Employee.

D. Employee may, at his discretion, opt out of receiving the CCSD health
insurance benefits.

7. Professional Development

As part of its normal budget process and reserving the right to establish 
appropriate priorities and funding amounts, Employer shall consider requests for funds 
for certain items, activities and materials deemed necessary and desirable for Employee’s 
continued professional development, participation, growth and advancement. Those 
items, activities and materials shall include:

A. Professional dues and subscriptions necessary for full participation in 
appropriate and relevant associations and organizations;

B. Travel and subsistence expenses for professional meetings and similar 
functions (e.g., conferences, workshops, seminars, meetings, etc.) to foster 
professional development or represent the CCSD;

C. Other items, activities and materials as may be agreed upon from time to 
time between Employee and Employer.

Addendum 1A45



4

8. Performance Review

Employee’s initial performance review shall be on or about January 1, 2020.
Thereafter, Employee shall receive semi-annual performance reviews on or before 
January 1 and June 30. As part of the performance reviews, Employee shall report on his 
efforts in the prior year to achieve the adopted goals of the Board of Directors. The initial 
and semi-annual performance reviews will include the preparation of a written evaluation
by each Member of the Board of Directors using the General Manager Evaluation Form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. Additional performance reviews shall be scheduled by of 
the Board of Directors on an as needed basis.

9. General Provisions

A. The terms of this Agreement are intended by the parties as the final 
expression of their agreement and may not be contradicted by evidence of 
any prior agreement or contemporaneous oral agreement. The parties 
further intend that this Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive 
statement of its terms and that no extrinsic evidence whatsoever may be 
introduced in any judicial or arbitration proceeding, if any, involving this 
Agreement. Any amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and 
executed by both parties.

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired 
or invalidated thereby.

C. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
Employee and the District agree that venue for any dispute shall be in San 
Luis Obispo County, California.

D. The parties acknowledge that they understand the significance and 
consequences of this Agreement. The parties also acknowledge that they 
have been given full opportunity to review and negotiate this Agreement and 
execute it only after full reflection and analysis, and that they have had an 
opportunity to review this document and its application and meaning with 
their respective attorneys and advisors. This Agreement shall not be 
interpreted against the party who prepared the initial draft because all 
parties participated in the drafting of this Agreement by having ample 
opportunity to review and submit suggested changes or corrections for 
incorporation into the final version of this Agreement.

E. Employee may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part.

F. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. The text herein shall constitute the entire 
Agreement between the parties. Any amendments to this Agreement must 

Addendum 1A46



5

be in writing and executed by both parties. This Agreement shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and executors of Employee.

10. Effective Date

This Agreement shall be effective on June , 2019.

In Witness Whereof, Employer and Employee have signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written.

EMPLOYEE:

John F. Weigold, IV

EMPLOYER:

David Pierson, President
Board of Directors

Digitally signed by John Weigold 
DN: cn=John Weigold, o, ou, 
email=jfweigold@gmail.com, c=US 
Date: 2019.06.17 02:53:23 -07'00'

Addendum 1A47



EXHIBIT A TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Job Description 

 

 

The General Manager serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the District and is accountable to the 
Board of Directors. It should be noted that the general manager may sub-delegate a function 
delegated to him/her by the Board. However, the general manager still retains responsibility to 
ensure that any sub-delegated function is carried out appropriately. Where functions are delegated 
to the general manager to perform on behalf of the Board, it is important for the Board to ensure 
there are policies in place to guide the decision making. The Board should keep policies guiding the 
delegated decisions under regular review. For example, where media liaison is delegated to the 
general manager, the Board should adopt a media policy to guide statements to the media. 
The position provides policy guidance to the Board of Directors and management staff; and is 
responsible for implementation and enforcement of all District ordinances, policies, and procedures, 
the conduct of all financial and human resources activities and the efficient and economical 
performance of the District’s operations. The General Manager provides highly responsible and 
complex administrative support to the Board of Directors. 
 
Performance Expectations 
 
Staff Effectiveness: Promoting the development and performance of staff and employees 
throughout the organization (requires knowledge of interpersonal relations; skill in motivation 
techniques; ability to identify others’ strengths and weaknesses).  
Practices that contribute to this core content area are: 
TEAM LEADERSHIP Facilitating teamwork (requires knowledge of team relations; ability to direct and 
coordinate group efforts; skill in leadership techniques) 
COACHING/MENTORING Providing direction, support, and feedback to enable others to meet their 
full potential (requires knowledge of feedback techniques; ability to assess performance and identify 
others’ developmental needs) 
EMPOWERMENT Creating a work environment that encourages responsibility and decision making 
at all organizational levels (requires skill in sharing authority and removing barriers to creativity) 
DELEGATING Assigning responsibility to others (requires skill in defining expectations, providing 
direction and support, and evaluating results) 
 
Policy Facilitation: Helping the CCSD Board of Directors and other community stakeholders identify, 
work toward, and achieve common goals and objectives (requires knowledge of group dynamics 
and political behavior; skill in communication, facilitation, and consensus-building techniques; 
ability to engage others in identifying issues and outcomes).  
Practices that contribute to this core content area are:  
 
FACILITATIVE LEADERSHIP Building cooperation and consensus among and within diverse groups, 
helping them identify common goals and act effectively to achieve them; recognizing 
interdependent relationships and multiple causes of community issues and anticipating the 
consequences of policy decisions (requires knowledge of community stakeholders and their 
interrelationships) 
 

Addendum 1A48



EXHIBIT A TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Job Description 

 

 

MEDIATION/NEGOTIATION Acting as a neutral party in the resolution of policy disputes (requires 
knowledge of mediation/negotiation principles; skill in mediation/negotiation techniques) 
 
FACILITATING BOARD EFFECTIVENESS Helping the CCSD Board develop a policy agenda that can be 
implemented effectively and that serves the best interests of the community (requires knowledge 
of role/authority relationships between elected and appointed officials; skill in responsibly following 
the lead of others when appropriate; ability to communicate sound information and 
recommendations)  
 
Service Delivery Management: FUNCTIONAL/OPERATIONAL EXPERTISE Understanding the basic 
principles of service delivery in functional areas--e.g., public safety, community and economic 
development, human and social services, administrative services, public works (requires knowledge 
of service areas and delivery options) 
Practices that contribute to this core content area are: 
 
OPERATIONAL PLANNING Anticipating future needs, organizing work operations, and establishing 
timetables for work units or projects (requires knowledge of technological advances and changing 
standards; skill in identifying and understanding trends; skill in predicting the impact of service 
delivery decisions) 
 
QUALITY ASSURANCE (Maintaining a consistently high level of quality in staff work, operational 
procedures, and service delivery (requires knowledge of organizational processes; ability to facilitate 
organizational improvements; ability to set performance/ productivity standards and objectives and 
measure results) 
 
CITIZEN SERVICE Determining citizen needs and providing responsive, equitable services to the 
community (requires skill in assessing community needs and allocating resources; knowledge of 
information gathering techniques) 
 
 
 
Technological Literacy: Demonstrating an understanding of information technology and ensuring 
that it is incorporated appropriately in plans to improve service delivery, information sharing, 
organizational communication, and citizen access (requires knowledge of technological options and 
their application) 
 
Financial Analysis: Interpreting financial information to assess the short-term and long-term fiscal 
condition of the community, determine the cost-effectiveness of programs, and compare 
alternative strategies (requires knowledge of analytical techniques and skill in applying them) 
 
Budgeting: Preparing and administering the budget (requires knowledge of budgeting principles and 
practices, revenue sources, projection techniques, and financial control systems; skill in 
communicating financial information 

Addendum 1A49



EXHIBIT A TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Job Description 

 

 

 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS: 
A Bachelor’s degree and a minimum of five (5) years supervisory experience in a related field that 
includes three (3) years in the public sector/local government is expected. Or, any combination of 
education and experience which would likely provide the necessary knowledge and abilities.  
EDUCATION/TRAINING 

Minimum: Bachelor's degree in public or business administration, management, civil 
engineering or related field 

 Preferred: Master's degree in any of the above 
EXPERIENCE 

Minimum: Seven years of management level experience in the areas of staff development, 
finance/budget, capital projects, personnel management, intergovernmental 
relations/negotiations and interdepartmental coordination. 
Preferred: Extensive management experience reporting to an elected board or commission 
which has provided a broad knowledge of the operation of local government in California 
along with water related issues and the operation of a community services district. 

SPECIAL LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS 
Minimum: Valid California "C" drivers license. Must maintain satisfactory DMV record and 
ability to maintain insurability. 

 

Addendum 1A50



EXHIBIT B TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Evaluation Form 

 

Director ___________________                 Page 1 of 3             
 

ASSISTING BOARD WITH ITS POLICY-MAKING ROLE 
A. Providing Information WEAK    STRONG 1. Does the General Manager keep you informed, in a timely manner, of the things you want to know about? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Do reports provide adequate information and analysis to help you make sound decisions? 1 2 3 4 5 3. Does he follow up promptly on Board requests for information or action without having to be reminded? 1 2 3 4 5 
B. Providing Advice WEAK    STRONG 1. Does the General Manager show adequate knowledge of community issues? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does the General Manager plan ahead, anticipate needs and recognize potential problems? 1 2 3 4 5 3. Does he have a good sense of timing in bringing issues to the Board for action? 1 2 3 4 5 

INTERNAL ADMINISTRATION 
A. Financial Management WEAK    STRONG 1. Is the General Manager effective in controlling costs through economical utilization of manpower, materials and equipment? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does he provide you with sufficient information on the financial status of the District? 1 2 3 4 5 
B. Personnel Management WEAK    STRONG 1. Are the decisions regarding employee training and productivity explained to Board? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does the General Manager explain decisions regarding positions and structural changes within the organization?   1 2 3 4 5 
C. Getting the Job Done WEAK    STRONG 1. Do you have the sense that things the Board decides or directs get done? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does he pay sufficient attention to detail to avoid error or things "slipping through the cracks"? 1 2 3 4 5 3. Does the General Manager develop and carry out short and long -term action plans? 1 2 3 4 5 

INTERPERSONAL  A. Communications WEAK    STRONG 1. Do you feel the General Manager is a good listener? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Are communications thoughtful, clear and to the point? 1 2 3 4 5 B. Management Style WEAK    STRONG 1. Is the General Manager open to new ideas and suggestions for change? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does the General Manager work well under pressure? 1 2 3 4 5 3. Can the General Manager consistently put aside personal views and implement Board policy and direction? 1 2 3 4 5 
 

Addendum 1A51



EXHIBIT B TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Evaluation Form 

 

Director ___________________                 Page 2 of 3             
 

EXTERNAL RELATIONS 
A. Citizen Relations WEAK    STRONG 1. Does the General Manager generally make a positive impression on citizens and is he respected in Cambria? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Is he effective in handling disputes or complaints involving citizens? 1 2 3 4 5 3. Does he have appropriate visibility or identity in Cambria? 1 2 3 4 5 
B.   Intergovernmental Relations WEAK    STRONG 1. Is the General Manager effective representing the District's interests in dealing with other agencies? 1 2 3 4 5 2. Does he participate in enough intergovernmental activity to have an impact on behalf of the District? 1 2 3 4 5 

CONTRACTUAL SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
A. Performance of contractual duties WEAK    STRONG 1. Knowledge of organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis evaluation of programs, policies and operational needs. 1 2 3 4 5 2. Knowledge of pertinent Federal, State and local laws, codes and regulations relative to community services district operations. 1 2 3 4 5 3. Ability to plan, organize and implement complex programs and projects. 1 2 3 4 5 4. Knowledge of funding sources impacting service and program development. 1 2 3 4 5 5. Knowledge of principles and practices of construction and service contract negotiations and administration. 1 2 3 4 5 6. Knowledge of the administration of project design, permitting and construction. 1 2 3 4 5 7. Ability to determine long range needs and to plan and organize work for the efficient accomplishment of such objectives. 1 2 3 4 5 8. Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships 1 2 3 4 5 9. Knowledge of planning and permitting processes and the administration of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as it relates to district projects. 1 2 3 4 5 
10. Ability to communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 1 2 3 4 5 

OVERALL PERFORMANCE 
A. Overall Impression WEAK    STRONG 1. Performance of duties in a professional and responsible manner consistent with generally accepted standards of his profession. 1 2 3 4 5 2. Publicly represents the district with professionalism, avoiding any action or conduct that may discredit or embarrass the CCSD. 1 2 3 4 5 3. Demonstrates commitment to the District and to a culture of excellence in serving the community’s needs.  1 2 3 4 5    

Addendum 1A52



EXHIBIT B TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
General Manager Evaluation Form 

 

Director ___________________                 Page 3 of 3             
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS List the top achievements or strong points of the General Manager for the past twelve (12) months.          
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT List the performance objectives for the General Manager that you feel are the most important targets for this year.                 Board Member Date  

Addendum 1A53



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SALARY SCHEDULE

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020
UPDATED JUNE 20, 2019 10 YEARS 15 YEARS 20 YEARS

SERVICE SERVICE SERVICE
POSITION TITLE STEP A STEP B STEP C STEP D STEP E STEP E+5%) STEP E+7.5%) STEP E+10%)
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Administrative Technician I 41,966  44,064     46,268     48,581     51,010     53,561  54,836      56,111     
Water Treatment OIT 44,333  46,550     48,877     51,321     53,887     56,581  57,928      59,276     
Maintenance Technician 44,555  46,782     49,121     51,577     54,156     56,864   58,218      59,572    
Water Treatment Operator I 46,368  48,687     51,121     53,677     56,361     59,179   60,588      61,997    
WasteWater Systems OIT 48,983  51,432     54,004     56,704     59,539     62,516  64,005       65,493    
Administrative Technician II 49,970  52,469     55,092     57,847     60,739     63,776  65,295       66,813     
WasteWater Systems Operator I 51,488  54,063     56,766     59,604     62,584     65,713  67,278      68,843    
WasteWater Collections System Operator (NEW)
Water Treatment Operator II 52,526  55,152     57,910     60,805     63,845     67,038  68,634      70,230    
Laboratory Technician 56,889  59,734     62,720     65,856     69,149     72,607  74,335       76,064    
WasteWater Systems Operator II 58,035  60,937     63,984     67,183     70,542     74,070  75,833      77,597    
Water Systems Operator T3/D2 59,501  62,476     65,600     68,880     72,324     75,940  77,748      79,556    
Administrative Technician III 60,700  63,735     66,922     70,268     73,781     77,470  79,315      81,159    
Finance Specialist-Payroll/Benefits 60,700  63,735     66,922     70,268     73,781     77,470  79,315      81,159    
WasteWater Systems Operator III 64,123  67,329     70,696     74,230     77,942     81,839  83,788       85,736    
WasteWater & Water Supervisors & SWF CPO 75,219  78,980     82,929     87,075     91,429     96,001  98,286       100,572        

CAMBRIA FIREFIGHTERS (IAFF LOCAL: 4635) (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Fire Captain 72,636   76,268     80,081     84,085     88,290     92,704   94,911      97,118    
Fire Engineer 60,240  63,252     66,415     69,735     73,222     76,883  78,714       80,544    

CAMBRIA FIREFIGHTERS (IAFF LOCAL: 4635) (HOURLY AMOUNTS)
Firefighter (SAFER Grant) 13.65           14.33       15.05       15.80       16.59       N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA RESERVE FIREFIGHTERS (HOURLY RATE: NO STEPS)
Reserve Recruit Firefighter ** 12.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Firefighter ** 12.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Fire Engineer ** 13.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Lieutenant ** 14.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA EXEMPT EMPLOYEES (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Deputy District Clerk (Confidential) 63,804  66,994     70,344     73,861     77,554     N/A N/A N/A

Management Analyst 63,804  66,994     70,344     73,861     77,554     N/A N/A N/A

Facilities & Resources Supervisor 74,945  78,692     82,627     86,758     91,096     N/A N/A N/A
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk 
(Confidential)

111,572       117,151   123,008   129,159   135,616   N/A N/A N/A

Finance Manager 107,900       113,295   118,960   124,908   131,153   N/A N/A N/A

District Engineer/Utilities Department Manager 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A

Fire Chief 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A

Administrative Department Manager *** 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A
General Manager  August 1, 2019 (or sooner)-
January 31, 2020) 155,000       155,000   155,000   155,000   155,000   N/A N/A N/A

General Manager (February 1, 2020) 170,000       170,000   170,000   170,000   170,000   N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA LIMITED TERM EMPLOYEE (HOURLY RATE: NO STEPS)
Utilities Manager * 99.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

** Increase rate $1.00 per year January 1, 2019-January 1, 2022
***Assistant General Manager designation receives 5% pay 
differential 
Position with Confidential designation receives  5% pay 
differential
Wastewater Collection System Operator - Job description and 
salary range to be determined.

Red denotes a change

* Part-time employee working 24/hrs per week. This position receives cash in-lieu for heath and dental premiums, 
vacation is accrued at 1 day per month and receives a pro-rata portion of  other benefits as provided in the 
Employment Agreement  based on 24 hours per week.

Addendum 1A: Exhibit B Salary Schedule to Resolution 28-2019
54



6/18/2019: Addendum 1B 
 

1 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO.  4.A. 

 
FROM: Pamela Duffield, Finance Manager 
VIA:  Paavo Ogren, Interim General Manager 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019 Subject:  PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND  
    CONSIDER ADOPTION OF  
    RESOLUTION 24-2019 APPROVING  
    THE CCSD PRELIMINARY BUDGET  
    FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 AND  
    ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 25-2019  
    ESTABLISHING THE FISCAL YEAR  
    2019/2020 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends the Board discuss and consider adoption of Resolution 24-2019 approving 
the CCSD Preliminary Budget for FY 2019/2020, adoption of Resolution 25-2019 establishing 
the FY 2019/2020 appropriations limit, and provide direction to staff as deemed appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The FY 2019/2020 Preliminary Budget would authorize total Revenue Projections, Expenditure 
Authorities, and changes to the General Fund, Water, SWF and Wastewater Fund balances as 
shown below: 
 
The overall fiscal impact to the General Fund is a surplus of $17,767 and is calculated as follows: 
 
Fire     ($69,818) 
Facilities & Resources ($45,895) 
Administration  $133,480 
PROS              $0 
Total     $ 17,767 
     
The overall fiscal impact to the Enterprise Funds is a surplus of $67,183 and is calculated as 
follows: 
 
Water    $195,003 
SWF    $  10,789 
SWF-Capital           ($138,609) 
Wastewater             $0 
Total    $ 67,183 
 
The specific detail for each fund’s surplus or deficit is discussed in detail in Attachment A and 
will be discussed by staff during the budget presentation.  
 
DISCUSSION: 

55



6/18/2019: Addendum 1B 
 

2 

 

Adoption of a budget is one of the most important actions taken by the Board of Directors. It 
establishes the District’s direction for the near term, and to some extent these decisions also 
have long term implications. The budget is the District’s financial work plan, translated in 
expenditures, supported by revenues. The budget establishes the priorities of the District for the 
fiscal year. 
 
FY 2019/2020 Preliminary Budget  
 
The Preliminary Budget includes several components: 
 

• Narrative – The narrative is an in-depth review of each departmental budget within the 
associated fund. Revenue sources and expenditure requests are discussed, along with 
significant budget items, trade-offs and goals/objectives/plans. 

• Preliminary Budget – The preliminary budget includes department and fund level 
summaries and detailed line items for all revenues and expenses.  

• Administrative Overhead Allocation - The administrative overhead allocation assumes 
recovery of 100% of administrative costs. The different types of expenses are recovered 
at different percentages to each department and associated fund. 

• Salary Schedule – The salary schedule is inclusive of all current CCSD staff, includes a 
correction of a confidential designation and three new staff requests (1 Water, 2 
Wastewater) recommended in the Prop 218 rate study. In addition to the salary schedule, 
a position allocation list (PAL) is being provided which details the change in staffing from 
FY 2018/2019 to FY 2019/2020. 

• Organizational Chart – The organizational chart represents the current reporting structure 
of CCSD that is funded in the preliminary budget. Existing staff positions, vacant 
positions, and new staff requests are included in this illustration. 

• Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) – Water, SWF and Wastewater CIP priority listings 
are included. The specific project amounts are still under discussion with both the Finance 
and Resource & Infrastructure Committees, and future Board action is to follow when the 
final CIP lists are confirmed. 

• Unfunded Budget Requests – The Board is being provided a list of each department’s 
budget request, plus the amount that was funded or not funded. It is important for 
department managers to continue to request items needed to continue to provide service 
to residents and also important for the Board and the community to be aware of funding 
shortfalls and the associated impacts of these unfunded requests. 

 
Staff has worked on the CIP priority listings with the Resource & Infrastructure Committee, then 
the Finance Committee and a subsequent budget ad-hoc committee to prepare the budget being 
submitted to you today. Both staff and the committees recommend approval of the Preliminary 
Budget through adoption of Resolution 24-2019. 
 
Establishing the FY 2019/2020 Appropriations Limit – 
 
Annually, the CCSD is required to calculate the expenditure appropriations limit from tax 
proceeds to determine compliance with Propositions 4 (Gann Initiative) and 111 (Spending 
Limitation Act of 1990). This calculation is based on the previous year's appropriations limit 
multiplied by the per capita personal income percentage change and multiplied again by the 
population percentage change. The State Department of Finance provides both the population 
change and the per capita personal income change for the previous fiscal year.  

56



6/18/2019: Addendum 1B 
 

3 

 

 
The CCSD is responsible for dividing revenues between tax and non-tax and applying the 
formula to the cumulative appropriations limit. For Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the appropriations 
limit has been calculated to be $3,104,071. 
  
This calculation means that the CCSD cannot receive more than $3,104,071 in tax-based 
revenues in Fiscal Year 2018/2019. The estimated tax-based revenues for Fiscal Year 
2019/2020 have been calculated to be $2,525,749, which is approximately $578,322 less than 
the appropriations limit. Therefore, the CCSD is in compliance with Article XIIIB of the California 
Constitution and staff recommends approval of Resolution 25-2019. 
 
Proposed 2nd Tier Career Development – 
 
There are two positions that are being requested to study and establish a career development 
series, 1) Management Analyst I/II and 2) Deputy District Clerk I/II. There is a desire to increase 
the level of responsibility of these positions to be similar to the Water & Wastewater Chief Plant 
Operators. Attachment 2 is provided as a recommended salary comparison for the current, 
proposed and comparison salary levels. Staff requests discussion and direction from the Board.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 24-2019  

Resolution 25-2019 and Exhibit A 
Attachment 1 – CCSD Preliminary Budget FY 2019/2020  
Attachment 2 – Proposed 2nd Tier for Career Development 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS ___PIERSON___FARMER ___RICE ___ STEIDEL____ HOWELL ___  
 

57



    Page 1 of 2 

      Resolution 24-2019 

 

 

RESOLUTION 24-2019 
JUNE 20, 2019 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY CCSD BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, the General Manager has submitted for consideration the Preliminary 

Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) Fiscal Year (FY) 2019/2020 Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the draft Preliminary FY 2019/2020 CCSD Budget was introduced during a 

public hearing on June 20, 2019, and all persons were given an opportunity to be heard 

and their suggestions carefully considered; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on August 15, 2019, on the Final FY 2019/2020 CCSD 

Budget is duly scheduled, will be advertised, and held, and all persons will be given an 

opportunity to be heard and their suggestions carefully considered. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors has reviewed the 

Preliminary CCSD Budget FY 2019/2020 for the period from July 1, 2019 through June 

30, 2020, and hereby finds that the Budget is a sound plan for financing and expenditure 

control of required CCSD operations and services, and said Budget is hereby approved. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors is aware of the potential that 

events beyond control of the CCSD could substantially reduce CCSD revenues and/or 

increase expenditures. Therefore, the General Manager may temporarily suspend the 

expenditure of funds within the adopted Budget if in his judgment such temporary 

suspension is necessary to protect the CCSD’s financial position and the impact of such 

a temporary suspension on CCSD operations will not be substantially detrimental to 

CCSD services. The General Manager is directed to administer the business operations 

of the CCSD as called for in the Operating Budget for FY 2019/2020 and as modified by 

any such temporary expenditure suspension. The General Manager is further directed to 

report back to the CCSD Board of Directors, as necessary, with recommendations for 

revision of the Budget when, and if, Budget impacts are known, and specific CCSD 

program or service level adjustments can be formulated. 

  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the CCSD Board of Directors hereby directs the 

General Manager to levy and collect special assessments and other fees as duly 

approved by the Board and to administer and expend the tax proceeds in accordance 

with the enabling legislation.  
 

58



    Page 2 of 2 

      Resolution 24-2019 

 

 

On the motion of Director __________________________, seconded by Director  
 
____________________________, and the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20rd day of June, 2019. 
 
 
 
             
       David Pierson, President 
       Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Monique Madrid, District Clerk   Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
       
 
 
 
             

 

59



                                                                                                   Page 1 of 1 

  Resolution 25-2019 

 

RESOLUTION 25-2019 
June 20, 2019 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTING A TAX PROCEEDS EXPENDITURE  

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 7900 et seq. provide for the effective and 
efficient implementation of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 7900 et seq. provide that each year, the 
governing body of each local agency shall, by resolution, establish the tax proceeds 
expenditure appropriations limit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 

The appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 is hereby established at Three Million 
One Hundred Four Thousand Seventy One Dollars ($3,104,071). 
 

Documentation used in the determination of the tax proceeds expenditure 
appropriations limit is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

This Resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 20th day of June, 2019. 
 

AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
  

 
      
David Pierson, President  
Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
 

 
       

60



Page 1 of 161



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2019/20 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Budget Narrative 

Summary ...........................................................................................1 

Combined Preliminary Budget ............................................................3 

General Fund Budgets ........................................................................4 

Fire and Emergency Services .................................................................................................................... 5 

Facilities and Resources ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Administrative Services ............................................................................................................................ 6 

Enterprise Fund Budgets ....................................................................8 

Water Fund ............................................................................................................................................. 10 

SWF Fund ................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Wastewater Fund ................................................................................................................................. 153 

Budget Schedules 

General Fund Summary………………………………………………………….……….16 

     Fire Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…18 

Facilities and Resources Department……………………………………………………………………………………………….27 

     Administration Department……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..35 

     Parks, Recreation & Open Space Department………………………………………………………………….……………...43 

Enterprise Fund Summary……………………………………………..……….……….48 

     Water Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..50 

     SWF Operations & SWF Capital Departments………………………………………………………………………………….58 

     Wastewater Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………68 

62



Miscellaneous Attachments 

 Allocation of Administrative Overhead……………………………………………………………………………………………76 

 Salary Schedule…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………77 

    Position Allocation List..……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………78 

    Organizational Chart…………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………..……79 

    Capital Improvement Program.…………………………………………………………………………………………………………80 

    Unfunded Requests…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..83 

63



Summary 
The Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) preliminary budget for fiscal year (FY) 2019/20 has 

been prepared reflecting several actions that have been approved by the Board of Directors during the 

course of the current fiscal year.  Those actions include approval of increases in customer rates and 

charges for enterprise funds, new budget policies, goals for calendar year 2019, and new guidance from 

standing committees covering numerous details associated with the CCSD’s finances, operations and 

capital projects. 

Overall, the District’s financial condition is improving as a result of the enterprise fund rate increases 

approved on October 4, 2018.  The revenue increases provide the District with the ability to cover the 

cost of providing water and wastewater services and to begin implementation of multi-year capital 

improvement projects.  On May 23, 2019, the Board of Directors also approved the second phase of rate 

increases, effective July 1, 2019, which were prescribed in Resolution 27-2018 adopted on October 4, 

2018 but which were not automatic.  Additional details associated with enterprise fund activities, 

including recommendations of the CCSD standing committees guiding the preparation of the preliminary 

budget are provided in subsequent sections of this report. 

While the preliminary budget includes revenues and expenditure plans for FY 2019/20, it does not 

include reserves since those are incorporated at the time that the Final Budget is considered by the 

Board.  The prescribed timing of the final budget, which is established by Government Code Section 

61110, provides staff the opportunity to perform year-end accounting closure procedures for the CCSD 

balance sheet in determining the current year’s ending reserve balances which are also the beginning 

reserve balances for FY 2019/20.  Since the District is currently working on the FY 2017/18 audit, the 

reserve balances incorporated into the FY 2019/20 will be staffs’ best unaudited estimates for the final 

budget.  Interfund loans are likely the most significant issues that may affect balance sheets and 

reserves.  Based on existing Board direction, staff will provide an update on interfund loans prior to the 

submittal of the final budget with an initial review during presentation of the preliminary budget.  

Service levels in the CCSD General Fund budgets, including Fire, Facilities and Resources, and Parks, 

Recreation and Open Space are generally consistent with the current fiscal year.  Since the General Fund 

budgets are predominantly funded through taxes and assessments, which are increasing parallel to the 

rate of inflation, several unfunded items continue to exist.  Additional details on General Fund budgets 

and unfunded items are provided in subsequent sections of this report.  Options to increase revenues to 

address unfunded items are relatively limited with the most notable being a potential increase in 

franchise fee revenues that are generated from bills for solid waste services paid by the community.  A 

current proposal by Waste Connections Inc. (formerly Mission Country Disposal) for a rate increase is 

being analyzed, and Board discussion and direction, if any, regarding franchise fees could be considered 

with that item.  The timing of Board review of the Waste Connections Inc. rate proposal has not been 

established but is anticipated in the near future.  

1

64



The following links to the CCSD website can be used for additional information on recent Board and 

standing committee actions guiding the preparation of the preliminary budget: 

Budget Policies adopted December 13, 2018: 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/district-policies 

Board goals for 2019 adopted January 3, 2019: 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/board-members 

New rates for water, the sustainable water facilities and wastewater approved on October 4, 2018: 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2018-10-04-board-special-meeting 

July 2018 Report by Bartle Wells Inc. supporting the Proposition 218 rate increases approved on 

October 4, 2018: 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2018-07-11-board-special-meeting 

May 23, 2019 approval of water, sustainable water facilities and wastewater rates effective July 1, 

2019: 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2019-05-23-board-meeting 

2

65

https://www.cambriacsd.org/district-policies
https://www.cambriacsd.org/board-members
https://www.cambriacsd.org/2018-10-04-board-special-meeting
https://www.cambriacsd.org/2018-07-11-board-special-meeting
https://www.cambriacsd.org/2019-05-23-board-meeting


Combined Preliminary Budget 
The following table illustrates the combined CCSD budgets. 

 

Total General Fund revenues are estimated to increase $143,576 (2.8%) from $5,095,150 estimated for 

FY 2018/19 to $5,238,726 in FY 2019/20.  After adjusting for an increase in Administrative Costs 

reimbursement of $128,706 incurred by the General Fund and charged to the operational budgets, the 

net revenue increase for the General Fund is estimated to be $14,870.  Property taxes are projected to 

increase $105,800 (4.4%) from $2,420,200 in FY 2018/19 to $2,526,000 in FY 2019/20, based on 

estimates received from the County of San Luis Obispo Treasurer Tax Collector.  The combined 

preliminary budget illustration above includes an offset for property taxes collection charges. The 

remaining changes relate to loan proceeds for equipment, reimbursements for fire personnel assisting 

on wildfires, and other revenues. 

Total General Fund expenditures are estimated to increase $32,100 (0.62%) from $5,188,859 estimated 

for FY 2018/19 to $5,220,959 in FY 2019/20.  The increase in Fire Fund expenditures of $98,036 

represents the primary increase in costs.   

Overall, the General Fund budgets are anticipated to incur a deficit of $93,709 in FY 2018/19, and a 

surplus of $17,767 in FY 2019/20, which essentially provides for a balanced budget in the proposed 

budget.  Achieving a balanced budget relies on 100% cost recovery for the Administrative Fund.  These 

administrative cost allocations, and other interfund transfers, are eliminated in the CCSD combined 

budget to determine net revenues and net expenditures after interfund activities. 

Cambria CSD - Combined Preliminary 

Budget Fiscal Year 2019/20

General Fund 

Budgets

Enterprise Fund 

Budgets

Budget 

Subtotals

Eliminating 

Adjustments

Combined 

Budgets

Revenues

Property Taxes 2,480,735$          25,000$                2,505,735$          -$                      2,505,735$          

Fire Assessments 472,500                472,500                472,500                

Franchise Fees 86,000                  86,000                  86,000                  

Administrative Cost Reimbursements 2,009,556            2,009,556            (2,009,556)          -                             

Water Rates 2,989,000            2,989,000            2,989,000            

Sustainable Water Facility Rates 1,172,000            1,172,000            1,172,000            

Wastewater Rates 2,818,000            2,818,000            2,818,000            

Grants 75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  

Interest Income 42,895                  42,895                  (27,960)                14,935                  

Other Revenues 72,040                  623,345                695,385                (25,000)                670,385                

Total Revenues 5,238,726$          7,627,345$          12,866,071$       (2,062,516)$        10,803,555$       

Expenditures

Personnels Services 3,186,468$          2,133,427$          5,319,895$          5,319,895$          

Services and Supplies 1,273,302            1,816,773            3,090,075            3,090,075            

Capital Outlay 92,500                  1,236,536            1,329,036            1,329,036            

Debt Service 143,738                888,820                1,032,558            (27,960)                1,004,598            

Administrative Cost Allocation 524,952                1,484,606            2,009,558            (2,009,558)          -                             

Total Expenditures 5,220,959$          7,560,162$          12,781,121$       (2,037,518)$        10,743,603$       

Net Sources Over / (Under) Uses 17,767$                67,183$                84,950$                24,998$                59,952$                

3

66



The Enterprise Fund revenues are estimated to increase $759,487 (11%) from $6,867,858 in FY 2018/19 

to $7,627,345 in FY 2019/20.  Enterprise Fund expenditures are estimated to increase $987,269 (15.0%).  

The increases in revenues and expenditures is consistent with the rate increases approved in October 

2018.  Although the use of reserves and interfund transfers in FY 2019/20 is needed to cover the 

budgeted costs, doing so is consistent with the Prop 218 estimates and the overall multi-year 

implementation of the new rate structure.  Details comparing the proposed FY 2019/20 budget to the 

estimates included in the Proposition 218 analysis prepared by Bartle Wells, which documented the 

need for the rate increases, is subsequently discussed in greater detail. 

General Fund Budgets 
The General Fund Budgets consist of the following: 

▪ Fire Fund 

▪ Facilities and Resources Fund 

▪ PROS (Parks, Recreation and Open Space) Fund 

▪ Administrative Fund (Including the Overhead Allocation spreadsheet) 

The combined General Fund budgets are illustrated on page 6, with summary and detailed schedules for 

each budget on pages 17 to 75.   

Significant Budget Items 

General Fund revenues are primarily property taxes, which are allocated between Fire, Facilities and 

Resources, and PROS in order to fund budgeted expenditures.  Other revenues, such as the Fire 

Assessments, are restricted to the Fire Fund.  The Administrative Fund budget includes a schedule on 

page 77 illustrating how administrative costs are allocated between the various CCSD budgets.  In order 

to balance the General Fund budgets in FY 2019/20, the Administrative Cost allocation provides for 

100% reimbursement of costs.  Although Franchise Fee revenues continue to be shown in the 

Administrative Fund, they are not used to offset administrative cost and therefore help to ensure that 

the General Fund is balanced. 

The following illustrates the allocation of CCSD property taxes.  

 

4

67



General Fund Trade-Offs 

Trade-offs in General Fund budgets link to how much property taxes is allocated to one of the budgets 

versus another budget.  The Fire Fund is allocated 71% of the CCSD property taxes, which together with 

Fire Assessments of $472,500, provide most of its funding.  The Facilities and Resources Fund receives 

27% of the CCSD property taxes, which with rental income of the Veterans Hall of $26,000, provide for 

most of its funding.  Allocating more property taxes to one fund, and decreasing the other, would result 

in trade-offs, possible changes in staffing, and changes in the list of “Unfunded Requests” illustrated on 

pages 84-85. 

When considering trade-offs between General Fund budgets, it is important to recognize that CCSD has 

taken on added responsibilities in recent years without funding.  Funding for maintenance of open space 

and the maintenance of the Veterans Hall are two primary responsibilities of the Facilities and Resources 

budget that continue to be underfunded and where service is provided in the best manner possible 

within available funding. 

Lastly, $25,000 in property taxes is budgeted for the low-income discounts for wastewater customers.  

Based on Proposition 218 requirements for the proportional allocation of costs when establishing 

customer rates and charges, low income discounts cannot be subsidized by other wastewater 

customers.  Property taxes are the sole source of discretionary revenues appropriate to cover the cost of 

the discounts.  Board consideration of providing low-income discounts for water customers is also under 

consideration and would require additional funding from property tax revenues which are not included 

in the FY 2019/20 budget but which would create additional trade-offs. 

Fire and Emergency Services – See budget schedules on pages 19-26 

Significant Budget Items 

• The CCSD Fire Fund provides for 7 full time personnel and 15 volunteer/reserve fire personnel.  

Staffing levels are consistent with the current FY 2018/19 staffing.   

• Expenditures include $75,000 to upgrade the radio system.  Budgeted revenues also include 

$75,000 in grant to pay for the upgrade.  Grant applications have been successful through two 

rounds of review.  In the event that the grant is not awarded to CCSD, an agenda item will be 

prepared during mid-year budget review so that any budget savings or available reserves can be 

considered to fund the upgrade. 

• The budget request for FY 2019/20 included several items that are not funded in the preliminary 

budget and are listed on page 84.     

Goals, Objectives and Plans 

1) Continue to seek grant to upgrade radio system & procure in accordance with CCSD policy; 

prepare funding options for Board consideration if grant is not awarded. 

2) Complete the goal for the Emergency Services Review adopted January 3, 2019  

3) Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing or other industry 

related training. 

4) Prepare a generator compliance and replacement schedule for Fire Department. 

 

5

68



Facilities and Resources– See budget schedules on pages 28-34 

The Facilities and Resources (F&R) budget funds three (3) full-time equivalent staff positions 

and related expenditures for maintenance and repairs of District assets including real property 

such as the Veterans Hall Building, Skate Park, Dog Park, Public Restrooms, Open Space and 

Fiscalini Ranch.  Relating to the F&R budget is the PROS budget, which has historically provided 

funding for start-up or facilities development efforts.  Current challenges associated with 

unfunded budget requests is common for local agencies that can funding facilities development 

but are harder pressed to fund long-term maintenance efforts.  

Significant Budget Items 

• The CCSD Facilities and Resources Fund provides for 3 full time personnel.  Staffing levels are 

consistent with the current FY 2018/19 staffing. 

• Funded budget items are listed on page 84 and include increased funding for building & ground 

maintenance, equipment repairs and Center Street Sidewalk repairs.  

• Significant unfunded requests exist and are listed on page 84. 

o Significant unfunded requests exist for maintenance of the Veterans Hall. 

o Significant resource constraints exist which affect staff’s ability to maintain open space, 

streetlights, and public restrooms, which may not meet service level expectations of the 

community. 

Goals, Objectives and Plans 

1) Continue coordinating with PROS  

2) Continue engaging in community dialogue on impacts from homeless encampments. 

5) Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing or other industry 

related training. 

6) Review the fee structure for rental rates of the Veterans Hall. 

Administrative Services– See budget schedules on pages 36-42 

The CCSD Administrative Fund budget includes the cost of the general manager and staff 

responsible for the district’s accounting and finances, human resources, clerk and records 

retention, centralized aspects of contract management and related administrative functions.  

The following chart illustrates the CCSD allocation of administrative costs. 

6

69



 

Overall, combined enterprise fund budgets pay 73.9% of the CCSD administrative costs with 

water fund budgets (including SWF budgets) covering 48.5% and the wastewater fund covering 

25.4%.  General fund budgets pay the remaining 26.1% with those costs covered by Fire 

(18.8%), Facilities and Resources (6.0%) and PROS (1.3%). 

Significant Budget Items 

• The Administrative Fund surplus for FY 2019/20 is estimated to be $133,480. 

• The surplus assumes that 100% of administrative costs are reimbursed by other operating 

budgets. 

• The surplus helps ensure that the overall General Fund is balanced by covering deficits in the 

Fire Fund ($69,818) and Facilities and Resources ($45,895).  

• Alternatives exist regarding revenues that are included in the Administrative Fund: 

o As an alternative to including revenues in the Administrative Fund, which generate the 

surplus, those revenues could be allocated directly to the other General Fund budgets 

similar to the allocation of property taxes; thereby eliminating the deficits illustrated in 

those budgets. 

o As a second alternative, all discretionary General Fund revenues could be included in 

the Administrative Fund.  Doing so would create deficits in other general fund budgets 

representing the true value of funding needed from the General Fund. 

Goals, Objectives and Plans 

1) Support the following goals adopted by the Board of Directors on January 3, 2019: 

a) Advance the District’s strategic planning efforts 

b) Develop the annual Proposition 218 rate review process 

c) Review the District Code and consider whether direction should be provided to draft 

amendments 

d) Review the District Fee Schedule and consider whether amendments should be 

provided to make amendments. 

7

70



2) Continue with progress on the following Organizational Goals included in the Board 

review on January 3, 2019: 

a) Staffing, vacancies and overall staffing levels 

b) Labor negotiations 

c) Employee Training 

d) Develop and review the annual budget in a timely manner 

e) Complete the annual audit in a timely manner 

f) Implement the Tyler Incode Financial Software program 

3) Work with the Finance Standing Committee on the frequency to re-evaluate the 

administrative cost methodology 

4) Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing or other 

industry related training. 

Enterprise Fund Budgets 
The CCSD Enterprise Fund budgets consist of the following: 

• Water Fund 

• SWF Operations Fund 

• SWF Capital Fund 

• Wastewater Fund 

The combined Enterprise Fund budgets are illustrated on page 49, included combined summary 

information for the three (3) water fund budgets (Water, SWF Operations and SWF Capital Funds).  

Detailed schedules for the enterprise budget are on pages 51-75.   

Significant Budget Items 

As with the General Fund budgets, some significant budget items are common to all enterprise fund 

budgets while other issues are budget specific.  The following is a list of budget issues common to all 

enterprise funds. 

• The approval of water and wastewater rates and charges on October 4, 2018 and the second 

phase increases effective on July 1, 2019 help to ensure sufficient funding for the CCSD 

enterprise services and investment in CCSD infrastructure. 

• Comparison of the Prop. 218 assumptions included in the Bartle Wells Inc. report dated July 

2018 and the proposed FY 2019/20 Preliminary Budget is provided for all enterprise funds. 

o Overall, the proposed budgets are consistent with Proposition 218 estimates. 

o Differences between the preliminary budget and the Proposition 218 estimates exist for 

budget categories such as labor, services and supplies, capital outlay, debt service and 

administrative costs are illustrated in graphs and the budget schedules. 

o Public comment provided during the budget review at the Finance Committee supports 

continued follow up at the committee level on the details underlying the Proposition 

218 estimates and District efforts moving forward with capital improvements and other 

District programs.  This committee follow up is consistent with Board goals considered 

on January 3, 2019. 

8

71



Trade-Offs 

In contrast to the General Fund budgets where trade-offs exist between the budget units depending on 

the allocation of property tax and general fund discretionary revenues, the enterprise funds have their 

own dedicated revenues and trade-offs are budget specific.  For CCSD water services, there are three 

“component units” of the budget – the Water Fund, the SWF Operations Fund and the SWF Capital Fund 

and trade-offs may also exist between those three components. 

Goals, Objectives and Plans 

Enterprise Funds are managed by the District Engineer/Utilities Department Manager.  A couple of 

important goals for FY 2019/20 exist for both water and wastewater operations including the following: 

• Recent rate increases provide funding for capital improvements and improved maintenance – 

implementing those efforts in a cost-effective manner will help ensure that the beneficial 

outcomes of rate increases are maximized. 

• Continue to improve regulatory reporting and responsiveness to resource agencies.   

More specifically, advancing the Multi-Year Infrastructure Capital Improvement Program (CIP) will need 

to address staff roles and responsibilities, how the project priorities are phased, how professional and 

construction services are procured, and refinement of scope, schedules and budgets for individual 

projects.  Overall project prioritization has recently been completed, reviewed and endorsed by the 

Resource and Infrastructure Committee and continued coordination with the committee will be a staff 

priority in FY 2019/20.  Details on specific projects and programs are discussed in the following sections 

on each enterprise budget.  Project Prioritization schedules are included on pages 81-83. 

Continued coordination between the Finance Committee and the Resources and Infrastructure 

Committee will also be important to advance the capital improvement program.  Consideration of debt 

funding, especially for the wastewater system improvements proposed with the PG&E Turnkey project, 

will be an important point of coordination since it may likely affect the feasibility of beneficial outcomes. 

 

9

72



Water Fund – See budget schedules on pages 51-57 
The projected surplus in the FY 2019/2020 Water Fund budget is $195,003, which is $156,003 greater 

than the Prop 218 estimated surplus of $39,000.  Budgeted revenues are estimated to be $3,424,250 

and within $24,250 of the Prop 218 estimate of $3,400,000.  Budget expenditures of $3,229,247 is 

$131,753 less than the Prop 218 estimate of $3,361,000.   

Personnel costs are anticipated to be 

$195,385 less than the Prop 218 estimates 

and primarily result from the deferral of the 

Utilities Manager position included in Prop 

218 estimates. This position will remain 

unfilled until staffing recommendations to the 

Board of Directors are completed later in the 

calendar year.  Services and supplies are 

anticipated to be $6,987 greater than the 

Prop 218 estimate.  Capital Outlay is 

budgeted in the amount of $600,000, which is 

the same as the Prop 218 estimate.  Debt 

service was not included in the Prop 218 estimates but will be approximately $26,547 due to the 

purchase of an F150 Truck and a Dump Truck in the current fiscal year which was financed.  

Administrative costs are estimated to exceed Prop 218 estimates by $30,098.  In total, expenditures are 

estimated to be $131,753 less than the Prop 218 estimates.  

The adjacent column chart compares 

budgeted revenues to budgeted 

expenditures. 

Water Fund Trade-Offs 

The Capital Outlay expenditures include 

trade-offs that will be needed to be 

considered by staff, the Resource and 

Infrastructure Committee and the Board 

of Directors during the course of FY 

2019/20. 

Priority #1 projects are listed on page 

81.  Since the SCADA system is expected 

to be implemented over multiple years, its phasing will need to be determined to  allocate available 

funding for water meters and other priority #1 projects.  The Capital Outlay budget also includes 

$44,000 for a replacement truck and security improvements.  As a trade-off, those costs could be 

funded from the Water Fund surplus and thereby provide an additional $44,000 in funding for 

infrastructure.  Conversely maintaining the Water Fund surplus may be needed due to the Prop 218 

assumptions in the SWF fund that includes an anticipated deficit of $57,000 and an interfund loan of 

$250,000. 

 

10

73



Goals, Objectives and Plans 

Water system goals for FY 2019/2020 include the following: 

• Update of Urban Water Management Plan 

• Update of Water Use Efficiency Plan 

• Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing and other industry 

related professional development. 

• Evaluate interfund loan activities, document and present to the Finance Committee and Board 

of Directors. 

o Establish specific goals relating to Capital Improvement Projects: Prepare a generator 

compliance and replacement schedule for Water Department. 

o During quarterly budget reviews, provide status updates on CIP efforts. 

o Continue to develop details on scope, schedules and budgets for individual high priority 

projects. 

SWF Fund – See budget schedules on pages 59-67 
The projected operating surplus in the FY 2019/2020 SWF Fund budget is $10,789 before the $173,000 

reserve set aside for 2 months of additional costs while the facilities are operating.  With the operating 

cost set-aside, the budget shortfall of $162,211.  The Prop 218 estimates assumed a shortfall of $57,000. 

Additionally, the SWF – Capital Fund includes expenditures of $138,609 which is $111,391 less than the 

Proposition 218 estimates. Altogether, the proposed budgets for the SWF funds are $6,180 less than the 

Prop 218 estimates. 

 

 

11

74



The unanticipated costs relate to 

personnel, which is $10,410 greater than 

the Prop 218 estimate, and costs related to 

“pickling of filters” to preserve the 

membrane filtration units within services 

and supplies, which is $101,555 greater 

than the Prop 218 estimates.  Budgeted 

revenues are estimated to be $1,178,180, 

which is $6,180 greater than the Prop 218 

estimate of $1,172,000 due to interest 

income.   

The capital outlay estimate of $138,609 

includes $80,000 for tank purchases to 

replace the current rental units which are used to store brine discharge.  $30,000 is also included for 

other capital outlay costs.  Continuing costs for the permitting of the facilities is included in the amount 

of $28,609. 

 SWF – Trade-Offs 

The continuing costs of permitting for SWF facilities is uncertain.  The amounts currently budgeted and 

contracted for environmental services will be encumbered at the end of the FY 2018/19, which will help 

offset the need for new funding in FY 2019/20.  Reducing the $110,000 budgeted for permitting by 

$81,391 will align the SWF budgets with the Prop 218 estimates as a whole. 

SWF - Goals, Objectives and Plans 

SWF goals for FY 2019/2020 include the following: 

• Procurement of tanks to replace rental tanks. 

• Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing or other industry 

related professional development. 

• Continue working on the Section 7 consultation and acquisition of the Regular Coastal 

Development Permit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

75



Wastewater Fund – See budget schedules on pages 69-75 

 

There is no projected deficit in the FY 2019/2020 Wastewater budget, which is less than the Prop 218 

estimated surplus of $122,000.  Budgeted revenues are estimated to be $3,024,915 and $16,915 greater 

than the Prop 218 estimate of $3,008,000.  Budget expenditures of $3,024,915 is $138,915 over the 

Prop 218 estimate of $2,886,000.   

Personnel costs are anticipated to be $78,598 less than the Prop 218 estimates and primarily result from 

the deferral of the Utilities Manager position.  Services and supplies are anticipated to be $146,231 

greater than the Prop 218 estimate and the greatest difference in any cost category.  Capital Outlay is 

budgeted in the amount of $497,927, which is $2,073 less than the Prop 218 estimate.  Debt service is 

estimated at $202,847, which is 

$42,847 greater than the Prop 218 

estimates due to interest expense 

on the interfund loan from the 

General Fund, which was not 

included in the Prop 218 estimates, 

and due to the purchase of the 

crane truck in the current year with 

financing.  Administrative costs are 

estimated to exceed Prop 218 

estimates by $30,508.  In total, 

expenditures are estimated to be 

$138,915 greater than the Prop 

218 estimates. 

 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

2019/20 Proposed
Revenues

2019/20 Proposed
Expenses

Wastewater - Revenues vs. 
Expenditures

Capital Outlay

Services & Supplies

Personnel Services

Administrative Cost
Allocation

Int&Misc

Debt Service

13

76



Trade-Offs 

The most significant Prop 218 estimate that seems inconsistent with historical costs is the estimate for 

Services and Supplies. Pages 71-73 illustrate that actual Services and Supplies costs for wastewater 

operations ranged from a low of $740,030 to a high of $833,097, with an average of approximately 

$775,000, over the past three years.  In comparison, the Prop 218 estimate for Services and Supplies is 

$669,000.  Preliminary review of the Prop 218 estimates for Services and Supplies seem to indicate that 

the estimated cost reductions were based on expected savings in power costs and a reduction in 

maintenance costs on lift stations.  Further investigation is needed and included in the goals listed 

below. 

To accomplish a balanced budget, it was necessary to reduce the Priority #1 Projects for the Vactor 

Truck, Video Camera and Lift Station by $36,073.  

Goals, Objectives and Plans 

Wastewater system goals for FY 2019/20 include the following: 

• Complete due diligence with Standing Committees on the PG&E Turnkey project and provide 

final recommendations to the Board of Directors. 

• Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Update 

• Haz-Com Plan Update 

• Fuel Storage Emergency Response Plan Update 

• Odor Control Plan Update 

• Operations Maintenance & Management Program Update 

• Continue to support employee training in maintaining professional licensing or other industry 

related professional development. 

• Evaluate Proposition 218 estimates of Services and Supplies and review with the Resource and 

Infrastructure and Finance Committees. 

• Review recommendations with the Resource and Infrastructure Committee on priority one 

projects and make final recommendations to the Board of Directors during FY 2019/20. 

o Establish specific goals relating to Capital Improvement Projects. 

o Prepare a generator compliance and replacement schedule for Wastewater 

Department. 

o Complete due diligence on the PG&E Turnkey project and present final 

recommendations. 

o Obtain bids on capital equipment and present recommendations in the 1st quarter. 

o Determine priority work on lift stations based on funding available. 

 

 

14

77



15

78



16

79



17

80



18

81



19

82



20

83



21

84



22

85



23

86



24

87



25

88



26

89



27

90



28

91



29

92



30

93



31

94



32

95



33

96



34

97



35

98



36

99



37

100



38

101



39

102



40

103



41

104



42

105



43

106



44

107



45

108



46

109



47

110



48

111



49

112



50

113



51

114



52

115



53

116



54

117



55

118



56

119



57

120



58

121



59

122



60

123



61

124



62

125



63

126



64

127



65

128



66

129



67

130



68

131



69

132



70

133



71

134



72

135



73

136



74

137



75

138



76

139



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SALARY SCHEDULE

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020
UPDATED JUNE 20, 2019 10 YEARS 15 YEARS 20 YEARS

SERVICE SERVICE SERVICE
POSITION TITLE STEP A STEP B STEP C STEP D STEP E STEP E+5%) STEP E+7.5%) STEP E+10%)
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Administrative Technician I 41,966  44,064     46,268     48,581     51,010     53,561  54,836      56,111     
Water Treatment OIT 44,333  46,550     48,877     51,321     53,887     56,581  57,928      59,276     
Maintenance Technician 44,555  46,782     49,121     51,577     54,156     56,864   58,218      59,572    
Water Treatment Operator I 46,368  48,687     51,121     53,677     56,361     59,179   60,588      61,997    
WasteWater Systems OIT 48,983  51,432     54,004     56,704     59,539     62,516  64,005       65,493    
Administrative Technician II 49,970  52,469     55,092     57,847     60,739     63,776  65,295       66,813     
WasteWater Systems Operator I 51,488  54,063     56,766     59,604     62,584     65,713  67,278      68,843    
WasteWater Collections System Operator (NEW)
Water Treatment Operator II 52,526  55,152     57,910     60,805     63,845     67,038  68,634      70,230    
Laboratory Technician 56,889  59,734     62,720     65,856     69,149     72,607  74,335       76,064    
WasteWater Systems Operator II 58,035  60,937     63,984     67,183     70,542     74,070  75,833      77,597    
Water Systems Operator T3/D2 59,501  62,476     65,600     68,880     72,324     75,940  77,748      79,556    
Administrative Technician III 60,700  63,735     66,922     70,268     73,781     77,470  79,315      81,159    
Finance Specialist-Payroll/Benefits 60,700  63,735     66,922     70,268     73,781     77,470  79,315      81,159    
WasteWater Systems Operator III 64,123  67,329     70,696     74,230     77,942     81,839  83,788       85,736    
WasteWater & Water Supervisors & SWF CPO 75,219  78,980     82,929     87,075     91,429     96,001  98,286       100,572        

CAMBRIA FIREFIGHTERS (IAFF LOCAL: 4635) (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Fire Captain 72,636   76,268     80,081     84,085     88,290     92,704   94,911      97,118    
Fire Engineer 60,240  63,252     66,415     69,735     73,222     76,883  78,714       80,544    

CAMBRIA FIREFIGHTERS (IAFF LOCAL: 4635) (HOURLY AMOUNTS)
Firefighter (SAFER Grant) 13.65           14.33       15.05       15.80       16.59       N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA RESERVE FIREFIGHTERS (HOURLY RATE: NO STEPS)
Reserve Recruit Firefighter ** 12.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Firefighter ** 12.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Fire Engineer ** 13.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Reserve Lieutenant ** 14.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA EXEMPT EMPLOYEES (ANNUAL AMOUNTS)
Deputy District Clerk (Confidential) 63,804  66,994     70,344     73,861     77,554     N/A N/A N/A

Management Analyst 63,804  66,994     70,344     73,861     77,554     N/A N/A N/A

Facilities & Resources Supervisor 74,945  78,692     82,627     86,758     91,096     N/A N/A N/A
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk 
(Confidential)

111,572       117,151   123,008   129,159   135,616   N/A N/A N/A

Finance Manager 107,900       113,295   118,960   124,908   131,153   N/A N/A N/A

District Engineer/Utilities Department Manager 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A

Fire Chief 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A

Administrative Department Manager *** 119,771       125,760   132,048   138,650   145,582   N/A N/A N/A
General Manager  August 1, 2019 (or sooner)-
January 31, 2020) 155,000       155,000   155,000   155,000   155,000   N/A N/A N/A

General Manager (February 1, 2020) 170,000       170,000   170,000   170,000   170,000   N/A N/A N/A

CAMBRIA LIMITED TERM EMPLOYEE (HOURLY RATE: NO STEPS)
Utilities Manager * 99.00    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

** Increase rate $1.00 per year January 1, 2019-January 1, 2022
***Assistant General Manager designation receives 5% pay 
differential 
Position with Confidential designation receives  5% pay 
differential
Wastewater Collection System Operator - Job description and 
salary range to be determined.

Red denotes a change

* Part-time employee working 24/hrs per week. This position receives cash in-lieu for heath and dental premiums, 
vacation is accrued at 1 day per month and receives a pro-rata portion of  other benefits as provided in the 
Employment Agreement  based on 24 hours per week.

Addendum 1B: Revised Salary Schedule for the 2019/2020 Preliminary Budget
140



78

141



79

142



80

143



81

144



82

145



83

146



84

147



6
/1

0
/2

0
1

9

C
P

O
   

   
   

  

St
ep

 E

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

 

fr
o

m
 C

P
O

 E

St
ep

 A
St

ep
 B

St
ep

 C
St

ep
 D

St
ep

 E

C
u
rr
en
t

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
n

al
ys

t 
I

6
3

,8
0

4
$

   
   

  
6

6
,9

9
4

$
   

   
   

 
7

0
,3

4
4

$
   

   
  

7
3

,8
6

1
$

   
   

  
7

7
,5

5
4

$
   

   
  

P
ro
p
o
se
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
n

al
ys

t 
II

7
3

,8
6

1
$

   
   

  
7

7
,5

5
4

$
   

   
   

 
8

1
,4

3
2

$
   

   
  

8
5

,5
0

3
$

   
   

  
8

9
,7

7
9

$
   

   
  

9
1

,4
2

9
$

   
   

  
(1

,6
5

0
)

$
   

   
 

 

C
P

O
   

   
   

 

St
ep

 E

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

 

fr
o

m
 C

P
O

 E

St
ep

 A
St

ep
 B

St
ep

 C
St

ep
 D

St
ep

 E

C
u
rr
en
t

 D
ep

u
ty

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
le

rk
 I

6
3

,8
0

4
$

   
   

  
6

6
,9

9
4

$
   

   
   

 
7

0
,3

4
4

$
   

   
  

7
3

,8
6

1
$

   
   

  
7

7
,5

5
4

$
   

   
  

P
ro
p
o
se
d

 D
ep

u
ty

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
le

rk
 II

7
3

,8
6

1
$

   
   

  
7

7
,5

5
4

$
   

   
   

 
8

1
,4

3
2

$
   

   
  

8
5

,5
0

3
$

   
   

  
8

9
,7

7
9

$
   

   
  

9
1

,4
2

9
$

   
   

  
(1

,6
5

0
)

$
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
n

d
 T

ie
r 

C
ar

ee
r 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Sa
la

ry
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

B
y 

M
o

n
iq

u
e 

M
ad

ri
d

 

Th
is

 s
al

ar
y 

ch
ar

t 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 p

ro
p

o
se

 a
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

h
ed

u
le

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 c

ar
ee

r 
p

at
h

  d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

fo
r 

tw
o

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

ch
ar

t 
b

el
o

w
.  

Th
e 

tw
o

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
o

n
 t

h
e 

sa
m

e 
ca

re
er

 t
ra

ck
 a

s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
as

ks
 a

n
d

 s
al

ar
y.

 It
 is

 d
es

ir
ed

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

lit
y 

b
e 

cl
o

se
 t

o
 t

h
at

 o
f 

th
e 

W
at

er
 a

n
d

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 

C
h

ie
f 

P
la

n
t 

O
p

er
at

o
rs

.  
Th

er
ef

o
re

, t
h

e 
p

re
fe

rr
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

is
 c

lo
se

 t
o

 b
u

t 
d

o
es

 n
o

t 
ex

ce
ed

 t
h

e 
to

p
 s

al
ar

y 
st

ep
 o

f 
th

e 

C
h

ie
f 

P
la

n
t 

O
p

er
at

o
r 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

s.
  I

t 
re

co
m

m
en

d
ed

 t
h

e 
se

co
n

d
 le

ve
l p

o
si

ti
o

n
 s

ta
rt

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

eq
u

iv
al

en
t 

o
f 

sa
la

ry
 s

te
p

 

"D
" 

o
f 

th
e 

en
tr

y 
le

ve
l p

o
si

ti
o

n
. 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

A
n

al
ys

t 

#N
/A

D
e

p
u

ty
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
le

rk

148



Addendum 1C 
 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.A. 
       
FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 20, 2019    Subject: CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF  
  AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  
  WITH PAAVO OGREN FOR UTILITIES  
  MANAGER SERVICES  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve an Employment Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with Paavo Ogren for Utilities Manager services and authorize the Board 
President to execute it.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Mr. Ogren would make the same salary of $99 per hour, plus limited benefits, that he did as 
the Interim General Manager.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
Paavo Ogren was designated Interim General Manager at the April 11, 2019 regular Board 
meeting, and his contract was scheduled to terminate on December 21, 2019 or upon the hire 
of a permanent General Manager. As the District is in the process of retaining a new General 
Manager, but is currently without a District Engineer or Utilities Manager, it is recommended 
that the Board approve a contract with Mr. Ogren to serve out what would have been the 
remainder of his contract term as the Utilities Manager. All other provisions of the Agreement, 
including salary and benefits, are the same as in his current agreement. This action would 
allow the District to retain Mr. Ogren’s valuable services while the new General Manager 
becomes acclimated and a recruitment for District Engineer/Utilities Manager can be 
conducted. The Agreement will only take effect when the new General Manager begins 
employment with the District, and can be terminated upon ten days’ notice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Employment Agreement with Paavo Ogren  
 Exhibit A Utilities Manager Position Description 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___PIERSON___FARMER___RICE___STEIDEL___HOWELL___ 

149



Addendum 1C 

1 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Employment Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this ___ day 
of June, 2019, by and between the Cambria Community Services District (hereinafter 
referred to as “Employer,” “District” or "CCSD") and Paavo Ogren (hereinafter referred to 
as "Employee"), who understand as follows: 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the Employee and Employer have previously entered into 

Employment Agreements retaining Employee as Strategic and Organizational Advisor 
and Interim General Manager; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has retained a new General Manager and now 
desires to appoint and employ Employee as the Utilities Manager, and Employee desires 
to accept said appointment subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. EMPLOYMENT AS UTILITIES MANAGER 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, District hereby agrees to 
employ Employee as the District’s Utilities Manager. Employee shall perform the duties 
set forth in the Utilities Manager position description, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2.  TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

A. This Agreement shall take effect when a permanent General Manager begins 
employment with the District and shall remain in effect until December 21, 2019, 
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. 
 

B. Employee understands that he has no constitutionally protected property or other 
interests in his employment as the Utilities Manager and the position is considered 
to be “at will” employment. Employee understands and expressly agrees that he 
serves in the Utilities Manager position at the will and pleasure of the Board and 
that he may be terminated from that position at any time by the Board, without 
cause, by providing Employee with written notice of such termination. Additionally, 
Employee shall have the right to resign from that position at any time by providing 
the Board with written notice of such resignation.    

 
SECTION 3.  WORK SCHEDULE, SALARY AND COMPENSATION 
 

A. Employee’s work schedule shall include working at the CCSD offices a minimum 
of two days per week. He shall also provide the CCSD with services on one 
additional day per week, which may be either from the CCSD or from his home or 
from other locations that may be convenient for the Employee. Overall, it is 

150



Addendum 1C 

2 
 

anticipated that Employee will provide approximately 24 hours per week of 
services to the District. Timesheets shall be submitted substantiating the hours 
worked. 
 

B. Employer agrees to pay Employee Ninety-Nine Dollars ($99.00) per hour for his 
services as Utilities Manager, which compensation is set forth in CCSD’s 
Preliminary Budget adopted by Resolution 24-2019. Employee shall receive the 
following benefits: contributions to CalPERS, sick leave, administrative leave, and 
payment of Social Security costs and other legally required employment costs. 
Health insurance and dental insurance premiums will be paid as “cash in-lieu,” and 
vacation leave will accrue at a rate of one day per month.  

 
C. Employer acknowledges that since Employee is currently a member of the 

California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), his employment with 
the District shall be enrolled with CalPERS upon his hiring and reported 
accordingly. Employee agrees to pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the 
Employee designated share of the contribution to CalPERS in accordance with 
Section 2.08.150 of the CCSD Municipal Code.   

 
SECTION 4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. The terms of this Agreement are intended by the parties as the final expression of 
their agreement and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior agreement 
or contemporaneous oral agreement. The parties further intend that this 
Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of its terms and that 
no extrinsic evidence whatsoever may be introduced in any judicial or arbitration 
proceeding, if any, involving this Agreement. Any amendments to this Agreement 
must be in writing and executed by both parties. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain 
in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated 
thereby. 

C. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Employee 
and the District agree that venue for any dispute shall be in San Luis Obispo 
County, California. 

D. The parties acknowledge that they understand the significance and consequences 
of this Agreement. The parties also acknowledge that they have been given full 
opportunity to review and negotiate this Agreement and execute it only after full 
reflection and analysis, and that they have had an opportunity to review this 
document and its application and meaning with their respective attorneys and 
advisors. This Agreement shall not be interpreted against the party who prepared 
the initial draft because all parties participated in the drafting of this Agreement by 
having ample opportunity to review and submit suggested changes or corrections 
for incorporation into the final version of this Agreement. 

151



Addendum 1C 

3 
 

E. Employee may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part. 

F. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and Employee have executed this Contract on 
the day and year first set forth below. 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
 
       
David Pierson, President 
Board of Directors 
 
Dated:       
 

EMPLOYEE: 
 
 
       
Paavo Ogren 
 
 
Dated:       
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Haley Dodson 
Deputy District Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Timothy J. Carmel 
District Counsel  

 

 
 
        
 

 

152



Addendum 1C: Exhibit A  

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

UTILITIES MANAGER 

 

DEFINITION 

Under the direction of the General Manager, the Utilities Manager is responsible for the 

supervision of all  District utility functions, including administration of consultant and 

construction contracts, managing, planning, organizing, developing, directing and 

reviewing programs related to CCSD water supply, production, treatment, storage, 

control, distribution, conservation, metering and customer service programs; and 

wastewater collection, treatment, and reclamation programs. The Utilities Manager 

provides professional services to the District relating to the planning, design and 

construction of the District's capital improvement program and for any studies, analyses, 

investigations, or technical assistance required in the operation of the District or for 

providing reports and information to regulatory agencies and as directed.  

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/EXERCISED 

The Utilities Manager receives administrative direction and job assignments from the 

General Manager. The Utilities Manager exercises direct supervision and management 

of the Water and Wastewater Departments and the Management Analyst.  

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Manages and oversees operations of utilities departments; monitors workload, 

output, and efficiency of utilities operations; plans, schedules, supervises, reviews, 

trains, and evaluates the work of assigned staff; holds regular meetings with 

assigned staff to communicate expectations, receive feedback, resolve problems, 

and provide required resources for work assignments. 

• Responsible for oversight of CCSD permit compliance including water rights 

permitting, water supply treatment and distribution requirements, and wastewater 

treatment and discharge permit requirements established by regional, state, and 

federal regulatory agencies, and interprets policies and procedures established by 

regulatory agencies.  

• Oversees the provision of contracted services; prepares specification and 

requests for proposals; reviews bids and makes recommendations for contract 

award; administers and monitors consultant service agreements and public works 

contracts to ensure compliance with contractual obligations and approved 

budgets. 

• Analyzes the District's needs, and develops and prioritizes projects for the capital 

improvement program; presents findings and recommendations to the General 

Manager; provides project management and construction management for capital 

improvement projects; enforces design standards, construction plans and 

specifications, adherence to project and construction schedules, compliance with 

153



Addendum 1C: Exhibit A  

project budgets including change-order review and recommendations, and 

recommendation of approval of contract payments based on progress of the work. 

• Oversees and assumes responsibility for the District’s asset management 

program in collaboration with the Finance Manager and supervisory staff in the 

utilities departments. 

• Provides engineering analysis and reports as directed by the General Manager; 

may make presentations of findings and recommendations as required; 

supervises and participates in the preparation of monthly reports to the General 

Manager covering activities within engineering and utilities departments. 

• Oversees the District’s permit and conservation programs, including issuance of 

Intent to Serve letters and management of the retrofit points bank. 

• Manages preparation of the CCSD’s budget and financial planning as it relates to 

engineering, utilities operations and capital improvements; reviews Water and 

Sewer fund revenue and expenditures and works with the Finance Manager to 

recommend appropriate adjustments to rates and fees based on established 

CCSD policy. 

• Represents the CCSD in work with other agencies and organizations to promote 

regional program development, including the Integrated Regional Water 

Management program and the Water Resources Advisory Committee. 

• Keeps abreast of current engineering principles and practices, technology, 

regulations and literature that apply to the District's operations and projects. 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Attends Board of Directors and community meetings as required. 

• Reviews reports and other documents submitted by subordinates or other District 

personnel for completeness and accuracy. 

• Responds to public inquiries regarding projects, plans and District policies.  

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

• Knowledge of: utility operation principles and practices as applied to the field of 

public works, including water and wastewater system design, construction, and 

operations; laws, codes, and regulations applicable to municipal utility operations; 

professional, technical, legal, and financial problems involved in municipal 

engineering programs and projects. 

• Skilled in: construction methods and practices; project management techniques, 

including scheduling, budgeting, enforcement of contract articles, documentation 

and good contractor-owner relations; cost estimation for public works type 

projects; specification writing for construction projects; and plan preparation and 

development for construction projects. 

• Ability to: establish and implement goals, objectives, procedures, and priorities; 

administer the work of multiple functions of the utilities operations organization; 

prepare and present statistical and descriptive reports; develop and monitor 

complex capital and operating budgets; provide sound and responsive customer 

154



Addendum 1C: Exhibit A  

service; provide accurate and thorough oral presentations to the public; operate a 

computer and applicable software; write clear and meaningful correspondence to 

convey ideas in non-technical terms and to provide technical documentation to 

back-up recommendations.  

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 

• Experience in the field of wastewater or water systems. 

• Licensed to drive a motor vehicle in the State of California. 

• A minimum of five years of supervisory or management work for assigned staff 

members, and in the design and construction of a variety of public works projects. 

• Bachelor’s degree, preferably in engineering, business or public administration. 

 

155


	Meeting Agenda
	SR 4 A REVISED Narrative and Attachment 03-07 CCSD Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Preliminary Budget June 20 2019.pdf
	CCSD BUDGET NARRATIVE_6.12.19 (Clean)
	SR 4 A Revised Attachment 03-07 CCSD Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Preliminary Budget June 20 2019
	SR 4 A Addendum 1B Sal Sch-FY 2019-2020 update GM UM (MM Approved).pdf
	ADD GM UM 06-20-19 (MM)





